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What’s that bright light coming from Mentor Graphics? It’s the energy and

enthusiasm generated by our smart, dedicated employees all over the world.

Mentor people make Mentor Graphics strong — and visible throughout the entire

electronic design automation (EDA) market. Our great ideas and great products

continue to slice through impenetrable design problems so designers can continue

to navigate their way through smaller design geometries with lower costs and

faster time to market.

Mentor employees are shining from San Jose to Cairo, Grenoble to Tokyo, and

Marlboro to Newbury. Our talented team spans the globe and continues to lead

the way by introducing new products and leading-edge technology. Step inside and

meet the people of Mentor by reviewing their accomplishments of the past year.

We don’t have to cast a bright light on our employees. They make their own.

Lighting up EDA with Bright Ideas



It’s common wisdom that in a software company,

all your assets go home at night. Your people are

your company. That’s true of Mentor, too. The value

of our company lies 100 percent in our people.

And, shareholders couldn’t have a better invest-

ment than in the employees of Mentor Graphics.

In 2002, our talented engineers generated 31

patents and 63 patent applications, giving

Mentor 113 U.S. and 16 foreign patents on

various technologies. As we head into 2003,

the bright ideas continue: as of January 2003,

Mentor had 192 patent applications pending.

We are also a truly global company, 

with not just sales offices but strong

engineering teams in Europe, North

Africa, India, and Japan (as well as the

United States). We’re finding the best

EDA talent in the world and welcoming

them to the Mentor team.

In fact, this past year, Mentor fortified

its already-stellar employee base with

several key acquisitions, which added

new brains, new ideas, and new

products to our worldwide operation.

Joining the Mentor family were:

■ Accelerated Technology® of Mobile,

Alabama, a leading provider of real-time

operating systems and embedded systems

development software

■ IKOS® Systems, a technology leader in 

high-performance, hardware-assisted design

verification from San Jose, California
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Letter to Shareholders

A Year to Welcome New Ideas

■ Innoveda®, a systems design company from

Marlboro, Massachusetts

These companies added significant revenues to

Mentor’s bottom line and a wealth of innovative

contributions to our product lineups.

Financial highlights from 2002:
■ Bookings were up over the prior year, with 

a much stronger annual book-to-bill than the 

prior year.

■ Gross margins were at near

record levels in company

history despite flat revenues

and additional acquisition

related expenses.

■ Our customer base

continued to grow,

averaging over 125

new customers per

quarter.

■ Quick integration of

acquired businesses

led to their solid

performance by 

the fourth quarter.

Normally, acquired

businesses struggle for the

first several quarters while

the businesses get aligned.

Mentor Graphics enters 2003

with a host of new products

and great people behind it.

Gregory Hinckley Walden Rhines



Calibre Expands to Capture Deep 
Submicron Market Share
This past year, Mentor expanded its highly suc-

cessful Calibre® IC design-to-silicon product line.

Recent Dataquest® (“EDA 2002: The Automation

of RTL Design,” Oct. 2002) figures show that

Calibre maintained its lead in the physical veri-

fication market segment, while establishing an

additional number-one position in the Resolution

Enhancement Technology (RET) segment. With

Calibre’s competitors in physical verification coast-

ing on older legacy technology, Calibre will once

again raise the bar on innovation and find itself

poised for continued growth this coming year.

A big part of what makes Calibre so successful is

its continuous evolution and extension into new

areas of the design-to-silicon flow. This year we

announced Calibre xRC™, a full-chip parasitic

extraction tool that links to the Calibre hierarchical

data processing engine. Calibre xRC is the only

extraction solution on the market that enables

detailed transistor-, gate-, and mixed-level

extraction for complex analog/mixed-signal

system on chip (SoC) designs. Calibre xRC has

what is required in terms of performance, capacity,

accuracy, and tight integration to the Calibre

layout versus schematic tool to handle the full

range of circuit types found in analog/mixed-

signal (AMS) system-on-chip designs.

In terms of manufacturability, 2002 was a key year

for Calibre RET, which found a semiconductor

market hungry for ways to improve yields for

smaller chip geometries (130 and 90 nanometers).

By tightly integrating Calibre RET tools with

Calibre physical verification tools, Calibre delivers

silicon accuracy, fast turnaround time, and

improved process yield.

Further downstream, we added Mask Data Prepa-

ration (MDP), which allows designers to export 

IC layout data directly to mask writer formats.

Calibre MDP accelerates mask data preparation 

by keeping the design in the hierarchical Calibre

environment longer, reducing mask writing and

inspection time, and ultimately lowering mask

cost. Mentor has partnered with leading mask

houses to develop and test Calibre MDP.

Front-to-Back Verification for 
Analog/Mixed-Signal SoC Designs
The increasing demand for more complex functions

and features in consumer electronics has fostered

significant growth in the amount of analog content

on mixed-signal system-on-chip (SoC) designs. 

To address the challenges of these analog/mixed-

signal (AMS) chips, Mentor Graphics introduced

an integrated set of AMS design tools: Design

Architect®-IC (with a new AMS SoC design

cockpit), ADVance MS™ (single-kernel simulator

“Our goal is to provide rock-solid performance, capacity and accuracy 
at all levels of physical verification and manufacturability.”

Joe Sawicki,
General Manager, 
Design-to-Silicon Division

COMPLEX SOLUTIONS
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for analog, digital, transistor-level and RF simula-

tion), IC Station® (physical layout and implemen-

tation), Calibre (the industry standard for physical

verification), and Calibre xRC (a full-chip,

transistor-level extraction tool). This fully

integrated set of tools is available for Linux,

HP, and Sun platforms.

Design Architect-IC offers a new, multi-level,

multi-language IP management environment

for setting up complex simulations, in addition

to schematic-driven layout and cross-probing.

This SoC design cockpit brings together

design components created with analog,

digital, and mixed-signal hardware

description languages.

Mentor ADVance MS (ADMS)

gives designers the ability to

simulate all aspects of a mixed-

signal design, allowing design-

ers to verify the sensitive

analog-to-digital and digital-

to-analog interactions that

can crop up at the borders

of the design when the

various components or

blocks are stitched

together. At final chip

assembly, ADMS ensures design integrity through

its high-performance mixed-level simulation for

bottom-up functional verification at the full-chip

level. Previously, designers 

would simulate each

component separately, 

then paste them together

and pray they worked. 

Now, they can test the

whole design at once,

smoke out elusive problems

earlier, and get to

market sooner.
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Complexity.
ADVance MS can handle
the complexity of analog
mixed signal design.



Programmable Logic Investments Pay Off
Evidence continues to mount that our early

investment in the programmable logic market 

was a smart move. Due to the one-two punch of 

a prolonged economic downturn and rising ASIC

costs, Gartner Dataquest (“ASIC/SOC: Rebuilding

After the Storm,” Oct. 2002) estimated that ASIC

design starts fell 12.3 percent in 2002, following a

precipitous 36 percent drop in 2001. Companies

are scrambling for alternatives to ASICs and find-

ing Field Programmable Gate Arrays (FPGAs) to

be an ideal replacement.

FPGAs are especially good development platforms

for fast-changing markets such as networking and

telecommunications where changes in industry stan-

dards result in frequent design iterations. To help

designers pack the most features into their FPGAs

and meet tight time-to-market windows, Mentor is

continuing to enhance the Precision™ Synthesis

tool suite for programmable logic synthesis.

Precision Synthesis delivers functionality in three

key areas:

■ RTL Synthesis. Precision RTL Synthesis incor-

porates years of design knowledge into an intuitive

synthesis solution that provides FPGA designers

with excellent quality of results and the industry’s

most accurate timing analysis. Precision RTL

Synthesis automatically finds and fixes timing

problems prior to programming the FPGA,

avoiding frustrating, time-consuming iterations.

■ Physical Synthesis. Precision Physical

Synthesis bridges the gap between the logical and

physical worlds. Precision Physical improves the

performance of FPGA devices by allowing

designers to take control of the timing closure

process. Precision Physical deterministically

performs device-specific, physically aware timing

optimization, allowing the user to achieve the

desired design performance faster and with fewer

expensive place-and-route iterations.

■ C Synthesis. With Precision C Synthesis,

designers can move up a level of abstraction 

for faster design creation and verification. With

Precision C Synthesis, designers can quickly trade

off design performance and area by working at the

algorithmic level of their design, allowing for

rapid design exploration and implementation.

Mentor Expands into New Board Systems 
Design Markets
Our acquisition of Innoveda, Inc., this past year,

strengthened our systems design division with a

mass-market toolset for smaller design shops, a

vastly under-served market. It’s critical for EDA

companies to make a beachhead in companies

DESIGN EFFICIENCY

“As FPGAs continue to grow in size and complexity, designers need a
synthesis tool that they can depend on. Precision Synthesis delivers 
on this promise.”

Simon Bloch,
General Manager, 
Design Creation and Synthesis Division
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when they’re small, because that’s when they tend

to make their design tool choices. If you don’t

have tools for this end of the market, you risk

losing them as customers when they become the

big players of tomorrow.

The Innoveda acquisition significantly broadens

Mentor’s position in both the PCB systems and

wire harness design markets, helping us better

address new challenges in system design. Innoveda

also contributes tools for high-speed analysis,

which is becoming a larger problem in PCB design.

As chip speeds increase, the number of physical

side effects on PCBs — such as ringing and cross-

talk — shoot up. Innoveda’s high-speed design

tools augment Mentor’s solutions, enabling cus-

tomers to address emerging technology challenges

from concept to final verification. Last but not

least, Innoveda’s front-end design definition tools

are used by 45 percent of customers using our

leading PCB competitor’s design flow, giving us

an instant foothold into this competitor’s accounts.

5

Reduction.
PCB System Design
tools can cut your board
design time in half.



Meeting the Verification Crisis Head-on
The treadmill of functional verification continues

to demand faster verification tools to keep up with

rising chip complexity. As chips become more

complex, they become more expensive to design.

The cost of failure also rises dramatically. As

leading-edge chip geometries enter the 130- and

90-nanometer range, verification is reaching a

crisis. In fact, verification is the largest bottleneck

among design engineers.

Mentor is meeting this problem head-on with

continued development of existing technologies,

such as Seamless® C-Bridge™, which efficiently

incorporates C-based designs into embedded

system simulation, and the acquisition of third-

party verification leaders such as IKOS Systems.

Mentor Graphics’ acquisition of IKOS Systems, 

a San Jose-based leader in high-performance

emulation systems, has enabled the company to

compete in the hardware-assisted verification

market with the VStation™ platform. With chip

design becoming so complex, designers need 

to verify the entire design — and verifying 

the interaction between blocks is a notoriously

difficult challenge. Software simulation is not 

fast enough for many of these monstrous design

verification jobs; hardware emulation is the 

only solution.

Speeding up hardware design verification gives

designers the opportunity to start designing the

software before the chip is complete, thus 

avoiding expensive design mistakes before it’s 

too late. The IKOS acquisition, combined with 

the Mentor Graphics Celaro™ emulator in Europe

and Japan, has established Mentor Graphics as the

industry’s leading emulation company, providing a

comprehensive set of technologies where Mentor

can claim verification leadership.

TestKompress™ Makes Design-for-Test
Manageable
TestKompress™ is a design-for-test tool that

dramatically compresses manufacturing test 

data from chip to tester to reduce automatic 

test equipment (ATE) memory requirements.

Offering levels of compression up to 100X

TestKompress not only requires substantially 

less ATE memory, but reduces test run times,

allowing semiconductor companies to sig-

nificantly reduce the cost of testing complex

devices, while increasing throughput and

extending the life of expensive ATE.

Once out in the market, TestKompress began to

serendipitously solve another unforeseen problem:

allowing chip manufactures to test for entirely 

new categories of failures inherent in new process

VERIFICATION & TEST

“As our customers face more complex design challenges we are 
ready with advanced test tools that can be used now.”

Robert Hum,
Vice President and General Manager, 
Design Verification and Test Group
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technologies. If manufacturers don’t expand their

test methodologies to accommodate new failure

modes, the number of defective chips they could

inadvertently ship increases. Because TestKompress

offers the highest levels of compression currently

available, additional test patterns and test types

can be applied during manufacturing test to

improve test quality. TestKompress has proven to

be a cost-effective way to improve test quality

without causing test costs to spiral out of control.
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Even on designs of
over 100,000 gates,
FormalPro shows
you everything.



Balancing Growth and Profits
While the economy made a modest recovery in

2002, it was undoubtedly a tough year for the

electronics and high tech sectors. Mentor not 

only held steady but grew market share this past

year, thanks to our strength, our diversity, and 

our steady flow of new products.

Downturns tend to produce industry consolida-

tions, allowing bigger, healthier companies like

Mentor to purchase smaller players that don’t have

economies of scale on their side. Our strong

development team and global sales and

service organizations allow Mentor 

to weather tough times that

causes smaller companies 

to tumble. 

We have used this downturn as an opportunity 

to grow our business by acquiring leaders in key

markets. But we always keep an eye on the bottom

line, balancing growth with profitability.

Will the markets for our products improve next

year? We certainly hope so. But we think it’s

prudent to plan for continued difficulty. Our 

workforce is healthy but trim, very smart and very

focused. We know what we have to do next year,

and we’re eager to get down to business and do it.

That bright light you see coming

from Mentor — it’s us.
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Performance.
Balancing growth with
profitability for bottom
line results.
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Item 1. Business

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that involve 
risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from the
forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to
such differences include, but are not limited to, those set forth under
the caption “Factors That May Affect Future Results and Financial
Condition” under “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.”

GENERAL
Mentor Graphics Corporation (the Company) is a technology leader in
electronic design automation (EDA), providing software and hardware-
based design and verification tools that enable companies to deliver
better electronic products to market faster and more cost-effectively.
The Company manufactures, markets and supports EDA products and
provides related services, which together are used by engineers to
design, analyze, simulate, model, implement and verify the compon-
ents of electronic systems. The Company markets its products and
services worldwide, primarily to large companies in the communica-
tions, computer, consumer electronics, semiconductor, aerospace,
networking, multimedia and transportation industries. Customers use
the Company’s products in the design of semiconductors such as
microprocessors, field programmable gate arrays (FPGAs) and
memory and application specific integrated circuits, as well a diverse
set of electronic products, including automotive electronics, video
game consoles, telephone-switching systems, cellular handsets,
computer network hubs and routers, signal processors, personal
computers, video conferencing equipment, 3-D graphics boards,
digital audio broadcast radios, smart cards, and products enabled with
the Bluetooth short-range wireless radio technology and 802.11
wireless networking technology. The Company licenses its products
through its direct sales force and an affiliated channel of distributors
and sales representatives. The Company was incorporated in Oregon
in 1981 and its common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National
Market under the symbol “MENT.” The Company’s executive offices
are located at 8005 S.W. Boeckman Road, Wilsonville, Oregon 97070-
7777. The telephone number at that address is (503) 685-7000. The
Company website address is www.mentor.com. Electronic copies of
reports filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) are available through the Company’s website
promptly after such reports are filed with the SEC.

PRODUCTS
The Company offers products that help engineers overcome the
increasingly complex challenges they face in the design of electronic
systems. The Company’s products are intended to make design engi-
neers more productive, enable designs not otherwise possible, improve
the accuracy of complex designs and shrink time-to-market schedules.

Electrical engineers begin the electronic design process by describing
the architectural, behavioral, functional and structural characteristics
of an integrated circuit (IC), a printed circuit board (Board) or an
electronic system. In this process the engineer describes the overall
product system architecture, implements it by creating a design

description, simulates the design to reveal defects and reiterates the
description until it meets the previously determined design specifica-
tions. Engineers use the Company’s products to specify the compo-
nents of the IC, Board or system, determine the interconnections
among the components and define the components’ associated
physical properties. Engineers also use the Company’s simulation
products throughout the design process to identify design errors and
test design alternatives before the design is manufactured. Engineers
use the Company’s verification products to identify functionality and
performance issues while the cost to correct is still low. The Company’s
test products are used by engineers to produce test sets to identify
defective parts during the manufacturing process.

Systems Design
The Company’s Board design software products support the printed
circuit design process from schematic entry, where the electronic
circuit is defined by engineers, through physical layout of the Board,
to providing digital output data for manufacturing, assembly and test.
Most types of designs, including analog, radio frequency (RF), high-
speed digital and mixed signal, are supported by Board design tools.
The Company has specific integrated products for process manage-
ment, component library creation, simulation and verification of the
Board design. The Board Station® and Expedition™ series are the two
main Board design families of products used typically by large enter-
prise customers. Through its acquisition of Innoveda, Inc. in May
2002, the Company added the “ready to use” PADS® Personal Auto-
mated Design Systems product line which provides a lower cost
Windows-based Board design and layout solution.

The AutoActive® products, with next generation place and route
technology on UNIX and Windows NT, are replacing the older
generation routers in Board design flows from the Company, Cadence
Design Systems, Inc. and others. The AutoActive technology, which is
incorporated into both the Board Station and Expedition product lines,
enables improved design quality, design cycles and manufacturability
through increased productivity, reduced interactive and automatic
routing times and shorter learning curves. The Company’s ICX™ high-
speed design technology tools address signal integrity and timing
challenges of complex, high speed Board designs to help make
simulation more efficient and accurate.

In the cabling area, the Company’s Harness Systems business unit
provides specialized software for design, analysis, manufacture and
data management of complex wire harness systems used by auto-
motive, aerospace, shipbuilding, home appliance and other industries.

FPGA Design
The Company offers a broad suite of FPGA design tools, including
products for design creation, documentation, verification, co-
verification, embedded software, intellectual property and FPGA on
Board. Hardware Description Languages (HDLs) supported by these
products include Verilog, VHDL and mixed HDL.
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The HDL Designer Series addresses high-end HDL design creation
and management processes with a family of HDL capture, analysis,
documentation and management tools. ModelSim® is a leading mixed-
language simulator that is heavily used for FPGA design verification.
For synthesis, the Company’s Precision™ Synthesis product family is a
next-generation synthesis platform created to maximize the perfor-
mance of both existing FPGA and multi-million gate field program-
mable system-on-chip devices. The Company’s FPGA Advantage®

offering combines features of the HDL Designer Series, ModelSim
and Precision Synthesis products to provide a complete design flow
and a unified solution for FPGA design within a single tool.

Physical Verification and Analysis
The Calibre® product line is specifically engineered for physical veri-
fication and manufacturability of leading-edge submicron circuit
designs and, according to a Gartner Dataquest October 2002 report, is
the market leader. The Calibre tool integrates physical verification
with subwavelength design resolution enhancement and mask data
preparation. The Calibre physical verification tool suite, Calibre
DRC™ and Calibre LVS™, helps ensure that IC physical designs
conform to foundry manufacturing rules and match the intended
functionality of the chip. For subwavelength designs, the Calibre
product line leverages its verification engine to provide a tool suite to
add, model and verify layouts for all four resolution enhancement tech-
nology (RET) techniques: optical and process correction (OPC); phase-
shift mask (PSM); scattering bars (SB); and off-axis illumination. With
the addition of mask data preparation (MDP) capability, the Calibre
tool has extended this flow to mask manufacturing. The Calibre xRC™

product, a full-chip, transistor level parasitic extraction tool, addresses
the distinct requirements for parasitic extraction, a process to extract
resistances and capacitances. The Calibre solution is the standard for
the majority of the world’s largest integrated device manufacturers,
foundries and leading-edge submicron library providers.

Along with the ModelSim digital simulator, the Company’s Mach TA™

simulator, Eldo™ analog/mixed-signal simulator and Eldo RF steady-
state and modulated steady-state simulator address the unique chal-
lenges of analog/mixed-signal and leading edge submicron designs.
These products allow circuit designers to verify the functionality and
performance of very large and complex designs quickly and accurately
and also help avoid long verification cycles, excessive iterations and
expensive silicon turns. The Mach TA tool provides fast, accurate,
dynamic timing analysis and detailed transistor level circuit simulation
with SPICE-like accuracy for memory and processor IC designs. The
ELDO analog and RF system simulator software products are primarily
used for the design and verification of complex analog and RF effects
in digital and mixed-signal circuits. The ADVance MS™ tool combines
ModelSim, Eldo, Mach TA and Eldo RF simulator technology into a
single, integrated tool.

System-on-Chip Design and Test
The Company provides its customers critical tools for solving the
increasingly complicated problems of verifying that today’s complex
chip designs actually function as intended. The Company’s System-on-
Chip (SoC) solution consists of two major categories: Design Reuse
and SoC Verification. The Company provides pre-verified, reusable
standards-based intellectual property through its Intellectual Property
division. For quick assembly of SoC designs using pre-existing
intellectual property, the Company introduced Platform Express™. SoC
Verification products include the Seamless® hardware/software co-
verification software product family, emulation products of the
Emulation Division and embedded systems of the Embedded Systems
Division. The Seamless product family enables simultaneous simula-
tion of the hardware and software components of a system design.
These tools verify the software-hardware interface by running the
software against simulated models of the hardware. Seamless tools
allow designers to verify software much earlier in the system design
process instead of waiting until the hardware design has been com-
pleted, verified and manufactured into a prototype. Early verification
of the system identifies functionality and performance issues while the
cost to correct them is smaller and reduces the overall design cycle.

The Company’s Meta Systems SARL subsidiary, provider of Celaro™

emulation hardware systems, was combined with IKOS Systems, Inc.,
supplier of the popular Vstation™ family of hardware emulator
products, which was acquired in March 2002 to form the Company’s
Mentor Emulation Division (MED). MED is the market leader in
emulation hardware systems worldwide according to a Gartner
Dataquest October 2002 report.

The Company’s Embedded Systems Division provides tools and
technology to developers of embedded software. Embedded software
controls the function of hardware components dedicated to specialized
tasks of such common consumer products as cellular telephones and
set-top boxes. The Company’s software development tools include the
code | lab™ Embedded Developer Suite, which contains the Microtec®

C and C++ Compilers and the XRAY® Debugger tool. These tools can
be used individually or together with commercial and proprietary real
time operating systems to develop dedicated applications. The
Company also provides the Nucleus™ Real-Time Operating System to
embedded systems developers in source code form.

The Company’s suite of integrated Design-for-Test (DFT) solutions for
testing an ASIC or IC design’s logic and memories includes scan
insertion, automatic test pattern generation (ATPG), logic and memory
built-in self-test (BIST), boundary scan and embedded deterministic
test (EDT). As part of the ATPG solution, the DFTAdvisor™, FastScan™

and FlexTest™ tools provide scan insertion, automatic test pattern
generation and diagnostics for production and yield improvements.
The Company’s BIST solution includes MBISTArchitect™, a flexible
tool for testing a design’s embedded memories and LBISTArchitect™,
a DFT solution for analysis, insertion and simulation of logic BIST,
which is used in board and system designs. BSDArchitect™ provides
boundary scan insertion and chip-level test control. In addition, the
Company’s patented Embedded Deterministic Test (EDT™) technology
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compresses test data volume and time while maintaining test quality,
resulting in increased quantity and quality of semiconductor testing.
Recent experience shows that new types of defects in semiconductor
processes at and below the 130 nanometer threshold will require 3-5
times the amount of test patterns currently used. The Company’s EDT
product, TestKompress™, allows semiconductor manufacturers to
reduce the automatic test equipment memory and time requirements
for testing ASIC, IC and SoC designs by up to 100 times.

PLATFORMS
The Company’s software products are available on UNIX, Windows
NT and LINUX platforms in a broad range of price and performance
levels. Customers purchase platforms primarily from Hewlett-Packard
Company, International Business Machines Corporation, Sun
Microsystems Inc. and leading personal computer suppliers. These
computer manufacturers have a substantial installed base and make
frequent introductions of new products.

MARKETING AND CUSTOMERS
The Company’s marketing emphasizes a direct sales force and large
corporate account penetration in the communications, computer, con-
sumer electronics, semiconductor, aerospace, networking, multimedia
and transportation industries. The Company licenses its products
through its direct sales force and sales representatives in North America
and a direct sales force and distributors in the rest of the world. During
the years ending December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, sales outside of
the Americas accounted for 49%, 51% and 52% of total sales, respec-
tively. The Company enters into foreign currency forward and option
contracts in an effort to help mitigate the impact of foreign currency
fluctuations. These contracts do not eliminate all potential impact of
foreign currency fluctuations. Significant exchange rate movements
may have a material adverse impact on the Company’s results. See
pages 26-29, “Factors That May Affect Future Results and Financial
Condition,” for a discussion of the effect foreign currency fluctuation
may have on the Company’s business and operating results.

No material portion of the Company’s business is dependent on a
single customer. The Company has traditionally experienced some
seasonal fluctuations of orders, which are typically stronger in the
second and fourth quarters of the year. Due to the complexity of the
Company’s products, the selling cycle can be three to six months or
longer. During the selling cycle the Company’s account managers,
application engineers and technical specialists make technical
presentations and product demonstrations to the customer. At some
point during the selling cycle, the Company’s products may also be
“loaned” to customers for on-site evaluation. As is typical of many
other companies in the electronics industry, the Company generally
ships its products to customers within 180 days after receipt of an
order and a substantial portion of quarterly shipments tend to be made
in the last month of each quarter.

The Company licenses its products and some third party products
pursuant to purchase and license agreements. The Company 
generally schedules deliveries after receipt of purchase orders under
these agreements.

BACKLOG
The Company’s backlog of firm orders was approximately $80 million
on December 31, 2002 as compared to $64 million on December 31,
2001. This backlog includes products requested for delivery within six
months and unfulfilled professional services and training requested
for delivery within one year. The Company does not track backlog for
support services. Support services are typically delivered under annual
contracts that are accounted for on a pro rata basis over the twelve-
month term of each contract. Substantially all the December 31, 2002
backlog of orders is expected to ship during 2003.

MANUFACTURING OPERATIONS
The Company’s manufacturing operations primarily consist of
reproduction of the Company’s software and documentation. In the
Americas, manufacturing is substantially outsourced, with distribution
to Western Hemisphere customers occurring from major West Coast
sites in the United States. The Company’s line of emulation products,
which is primarily comprised of hardware, is manufactured in the
United States and France. Mentor Graphics (Ireland) Limited manu-
factures and distributes the Company’s products to markets outside the
Americas through the Company’s established sales channels.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
The Company’s research and development is focused on continued
improvement of its existing products and the development of new
products. During the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
the Company expensed $164 million, $138 million and $126 million,
respectively, related to product research and development. The
Company also seeks to expand existing product offerings and pursue
new lines of business through acquisitions. In 2002, the Company
recorded purchased technology from acquisitions of $36 million. The
Company’s future success depends on its ability to develop or acquire
competitive new products that satisfy customer requirements.

CUSTOMER SUPPORT AND CONSULTING
The Company has a worldwide organization to meet its customers’
needs for software and hardware support. The Company offers support
contracts providing software updates and software and hardware sup-
port for emulation products. Most of the Company’s customers have
entered into software or hardware support contracts. The Company has
won five Software Technical Assistance Recognition (STAR) Awards
from the Software Support Professionals Association for superior
service in the Complex Support category. This category acknowledges
companies that consistently provide a superior level of support for
software used in high-end, mission-critical applications in fields such
as engineering science, telecommunications and other technical
environments. Mentor Consulting, the Company’s professional
services division, is comprised of a worldwide team of consulting
professionals. The Company’s professional services group was
established in 1987. The services provided to customers are grouped
into four key design areas known as Knowledge Centers: High
Performance (Printed Circuit Board) Systems, Design Reuse, System
Verification and System-on-Chip. Mentor Consulting’s model for
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delivering services, Knowledge-SourcingSM, focuses on solving a
customer’s immediate design challenge while giving the organization
the knowledge it needs to solve similar challenges in the future.

COMPETITION
The markets for the Company’s products are competitive and are
characterized by price reductions, rapid technological advances in
application software, operating systems and hardware and new market
entrants. The EDA industry tends to be labor intensive rather than
capital intensive. This means that the number of actual and potential
competitors is significant. While many competitors are large companies
with extensive capital and marketing resources, the Company also
competes with small companies with little capital but innovative ideas.

The Company believes the main competitive factors affecting its
business are breadth and quality of application software, product
integration, ability to respond to technological change, quality of a
company’s sales force, price, size of the installed base, level of
customer support and professional services. The Company believes
that it generally competes favorably in these areas. The Company can
give no assurance, however, that it will have financial resources,
marketing, distribution and service capability, depth of key personnel
or technological knowledge to compete successfully in its markets.

The Company’s principal competitors are Cadence Design Systems,
Inc., Synopsys, Inc. and numerous small companies.

EMPLOYEES
The Company and its subsidiaries employed approximately 3,500
people full time as of December 31, 2002. The Company’s success
will depend in part on its ability to attract and retain employees. The
Company continues to enjoy satisfactory employee relations.

PATENTS AND LICENSES
The Company holds 113 United States and 16 foreign patents on
various technologies. In 2002, the Company was granted 31 patents.
While the Company believes the patent applications it has pending
relate to patentable technology, there can be no assurance that any
patent will be issued or that any patent can be successfully defended.
Although the Company believes that patents are less significant to the
success of its business than technical competence, management abil-
ity, marketing capability and customer support, the Company believes
that patents are becoming increasingly important in the EDA industry.

The Company regards its products as proprietary and protects all
products with copyrights, trade secret laws and internal non-disclosure
safeguards, as well as patents, when appropriate, as noted above. The
Company typically includes restrictions on disclosure, use and trans-
ferability in its agreements with customers and other third parties.

Item 2. Properties

The Company owns six buildings on 53 acres of land in Wilsonville,
Oregon. The Company occupies 405,027 square feet, in five of those
buildings, as its corporate headquarters. The Company leases the
remaining building to a third party. The Company also owns an
additional 69 acres of undeveloped land adjacent to its headquarters.
All corporate functions and a substantial amount of the Company’s
domestic research and development operations are located at the
Wilsonville site.

The Company leases additional space in San Jose, California,
Longmont, Colorado, Huntsville and Mobile, Alabama and Marlboro
and Waltham, Massachusetts where some of its domestic research and
development takes place, and in various locations throughout the
United States and in other countries, primarily for sales and customer
service operations. Additional research and development is done in
locations outside the United States including locations in France,
Germany, India, Egypt, Pakistan, Japan and the UK. The Company
believes that it will be able to renew or replace its existing leases as
they expire and that its current facilities will be adequate through at
least 2003.

14

ITEMS 1-2.

Mentor Graphics



Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In October 1997, Quickturn, a competitor, filed an action against the
Company’s German subsidiary in a German District Court alleging
infringement by the Company’s SimExpress emulation product of a
European patent 0437491 (EP’491). The Company was unable to
challenge the validity of EP’491 under an assignor estoppel theory and
the German court ruled in April 1999 that the German subsidiary’s
sales of SimExpress violated EP’491 and awarded unspecified
damages. In February 2001, in unrelated litigation, the Federal Patent
Court in Germany ruled that EP’491 is null and void in Germany. The
German District Court, in response to the nullification of the Quick-
turn patent, suspended its April 1999 judgment of infringement against
SimExpress. The Company has appealed the court’s application of
assignor estoppel. Quickturn has appealed the invalidation of EP’491.
The German Supreme Court is expected to hear both appeals.

In October 1998, Quickturn filed an action against Meta and the
Company in France alleging infringement by SimExpress and Celaro,
the Company’s second generation emulation product, of EP’491. There
have been no rulings by the French court regarding the merits of this
case to date. In 2001, the Company filed suit against Cadence and
Quickturn (Quickturn became a Cadence subsidiary in 1999.) in
France claiming misappropriation of patent rights. This case alleges
that Quickturn misappropriated Meta trade secrets during Quickturn’s
evaluation of Meta’s technology in connection with a possible acquisi-
tion of Meta in 1994 and 1995 and filed one or more patent applica-
tions claiming rights to inventions Quickturn learned from Meta.

The Company had two consolidated lawsuits pending against Quick-
turn and Cadence in United States District Court for the Northern
District of California alleging that Quickturn’s Mercury or Mercury-
Plus products infringe six Company-owned patents and alleging a mis-
appropriation of trade secrets. In February 2003, the jury in this case
returned a verdict in favor of Quickturn and Cadence on all counts.

A subsidiary of the Company, IKOS Systems, Inc., currently has
pending against Quickturn and Cadence a patent infringement lawsuit
against the parties’ Palladium product. Quickturn and Cadence
currently have pending against the Company a patent infringement
lawsuit against the Company’s Vstation product. There has been no
substantive activity in either lawsuit.

In addition to the above litigation, from time to time the Company is
involved in various disputes and litigation matters that arise from the
ordinary course of business. These include disputes and lawsuits relat-
ing to intellectual property rights, licensing, contracts and employee
relation matters.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote 
of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of the security holders of the
Company during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December
31, 2002.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF REGISTRANT
The following are the executive officers of the Company:

Name Position Age

Walden C. Rhines Chairman of the Board 56
and Chief Executive Officer

Gregory K. Hinckley President and Director 56

L. Don Maulsby Senior Vice President, World Trade 51

Dean Freed Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 44

Robert Hum Vice President and General Manager
Design Verification and Test (DVT) Division 50

Henry Potts Vice President and General Manager 56
System Design Division (SDD)

Jue-Hsien Chern Vice President and General Manager 48
Deep Submicron (DSM) Division

Brian Derrick Vice President, Corporate Marketing 39

Anthony B. Adrian Vice President, Corporate Controller 60

Dennis Weldon Treasurer 55

The executive officers are elected by the Board of Directors of the
Company at its annual meeting. Officers hold their positions until they
resign, are terminated or their successors are elected. There are no
arrangements or understandings between the officers or any other
person pursuant to which officers were elected and none of the
officers are related.

Dr. Rhines has served as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer since November 2000. Dr. Rhines served as Director, President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company from October 1993 to
October 2000. Dr. Rhines is currently a director of Cirrus Logic, Inc.
and Triquint Semiconductor, Inc., both semiconductor manufacturers.

Mr. Hinckley has served as President since November 2000. Mr.
Hinckley served as Executive Vice President, Chief Operating 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company from January
1997 to October 2000. From November 1995 until December 1996, 
he held the position of Senior Vice President with VLSI Technology,
Inc., a manufacturer of complex ASICs. Mr. Hinckley is a director 
of Amkor Technology, Inc., an IC packaging, assembly and test
services company.

Mr. Maulsby has served as Senior Vice President, World Trade since
October 1999. From June 1998 to October 1999, he was president of
Tri-Tech and Associates, a manufacturer’s representative firm. From
June 1997 to June 1998, he was Vice President of World Wide Sales
and Marketing for Interphase Corporation, a manufacturer of high
performance network and mass storage products. From April 1988 to
December 1997, he was employed by VLSI Technology, Inc. where his
duties included Vice President Worldwide Sales and Vice President
and General Manager of its Computing Division.
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Mr. Freed has served as Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary of the Company since July 1995. Mr. Freed served as
Deputy General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of the Company
from April 1994 to July 1995. He has been employed by the Company
since January 1989.

Mr. Hum has served as Vice President and General Manager of the
Design Verification and Test Division since 2002. From 1997 to 2002,
Mr. Hum served as Chief Operating Officer and Vice President of
Engineering of IKOS Systems.

Mr. Potts has served as Vice President and General Manager of the
Systems Design Division (SDD) since joining the Company in April
1999. From 1997 to 1998, Mr. Potts was Vice President of Engineering
for Hitachi Micro Systems, a semiconductor research and development
company. From 1994 to 1997, he was employed by Motorola Semi-
conductor where his duties included leading the development activities
for Advanced Signal Processor Silicon and software products.

Dr. Chern has served as Vice President and General Manager of the
Company’s Deep Submicron (DSM) Division since joining the
Company in January 2000. From 1994 to 1998, Dr. Chern served as
Vice President and Chief Technology Officer for Technology
Modeling Associates. In 1998 Technology Modeling Associates
merged with Avant! Corporation and Dr. Chern became head of
Avant!’s DSM Business Unit. From August 1999 to December 1999,
Dr. Chern was President of Ultima Corporation.

Mr. Derrick has served as Vice President, Corporate Marketing since
January 2002. From November 2000 to December 2001 he was Vice
President and General Manager of the Company’s Physical Verifica-
tion (PVX) Division. From March 1998 to November 2000, he was the
Director of the Company’s Calibre and Velocity Strategic Business
Unit. From January 1997 to March 1998, he was marketing manager
for the Company’s Calibre Business Unit. Mr. Derrick was employed
by Allied Signal Corporation from 1988 to 1997, where his duties in-
cluded marketing manager. He has been with the Company since 1997.

Mr. Adrian has served as Vice President, Corporate Controller since
joining the Company in January 1998. From August to December of
1997, he held the position of Vice President and Acting Controller for
Wickland Oil Company, a petroleum marketing and distribution
company. From January 1996 to August 1997, Mr. Adrian served as
Managing Director of Wickland Terminals in Australia. From
November 1992 to January 1996, Mr. Adrian served as Vice President
and Controller of Wickland Oil.

Mr. Weldon has served as Treasurer and Director of Corporate
Business Development since February 1996. Mr. Weldon served as
Director of Business Development from June 1994 to January 1996.
Mr. Weldon has been employed by the Company since July 1988.

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity
and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s Common Stock trades on the Nasdaq National Market
under the symbol “MENT.” The following table sets forth for the
periods indicated the high and low sales prices for the Company’s
Common Stock, as reported by the Nasdaq National Market:

Quarter ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2002
High $   27.15 $   21.15 $   14.45 $   12.56
Low $   20.15 $   12.85 $     4.67 $     3.93

2001
High $   33.63 $   29.55 $   19.47 $   25.98
Low $   19.88 $   15.00 $   13.08 $   12.84

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had 728 stockholders of record.

No dividends were paid in 2002 or 2001. The Company’s credit
facility prohibits the payment of dividends.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data
In thousands, except per share data and percentages

Year ended 
December 31, 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Statement of Operations Data
Total revenues $ 596,179 $ 600,371 $ 589,835 $ 511,134 $ 490,393
Research and 
development $ 164,228 $ 137,799 $ 125,952 $ 116,867 $ 117,001

Operating 
income (loss) $ (13,826) $   30,443 $   63,589 $        568 $   (5,559)

Net income (loss) $ (14,314) $   31,104 $   54,987 $     2,234 $     (519)
Gross margin 
percent 80% 81% 80% 77% 75%

Operating income 
(loss) as a percent 
of revenues (2)% 5% 11% 0% (1)%

Per Share Data
Net income (loss) 
per share – 
basic $    (0.22) $       0.48 $       0.86 $       0.03 $    (0.01)

Net income (loss) 
per share – 
diluted $    (0.22) $       0.46 $       0.81 $       0.03 $     (0.01)

Weighted average 
number of shares 
outstanding – 
basic 65,766 64,436 64,125 65,629 65,165

Weighted average 
number of shares 
outstanding – 
diluted 65,766 67,681 67,509 66,324 65,165

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and 
investments, 
short-term $   38,826 $ 147,176 $ 141,872 $ 133,187 $ 137,585

Working capital 
(deficit) $   (4,755) $ 149,293 $ 132,695 $ 133,203 $ 148,313

Property, plant 
and equipment, 
net $   90,259 $   82,247 $   82,560 $   83,970 $   95,214

Total assets $ 804,848 $ 521,221 $ 530,914 $ 451,386 $ 464,123
Short-term 
borrowings $   17,670 $            – $            – $            – $   24,000

Notes payable 
and other long-
term liabilities $ 196,960 $   14,466 $     7,247 $     1,221 $     1,425

Stockholders’
equity $ 359,720 $ 326,208 $ 316,537 $ 288,780 $ 295,282

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations
All numerical references in thousands, except percentages, per share data 
and number of employees

NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The Company is a supplier of EDA systems — advanced computer
software, emulation hardware systems and intellectual property
designs and databases used to automate the design, analysis and
testing of electronic hardware and embedded systems software in
electronic systems and components. The Company markets its
products and services worldwide, primarily to large companies in the
communications, computer, consumer electronics, semiconductor,
aerospace, networking, multimedia and transportation industries. The
Company sells and licenses its products through its direct sales force
and an affiliated channel of distributors and sales representatives. In
addition to its corporate offices in Wilsonville, Oregon, the Company
has sales, support, software development and professional service
offices worldwide.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and
results of operations are based upon the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The preparation of these financial statements requires the
Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities and contingencies as of the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. The Company evaluates its
estimates on an on-going basis. The Company bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions. The Company believes the following
critical accounting policies affect its more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial
statements. The Company’s critical accounting policies are as follows:

Revenue Recognition
The Company generally records product revenue from fixed-term
installment license agreements upon shipment and start of the license
term. In addition, support revenue is recognized over the license term
and is allocated based on vendor specific objective evidence of the fair
value of support, as established by the price charged when such support
is sold separately. These installment license agreements are typically
for three years. The Company uses these agreements as a standard
business practice and has a history of successfully collecting under the
original payment terms without making concessions on payments,
products or services. The agreements are with the Company’s top-rated
customers. If the Company no longer had a history of collecting
without providing concessions on term agreements, then revenue
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would be required to be recognized as the payments become due over
the license term. This change would have a material impact on the
Company’s results. Additionally, if customers fail to make the contrac-
tual payments under the installment license agreements, the Company
would have to recognize a bad debt charge. The Company maintains
allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from
the inability of its customers to make required payments. If the
financial condition of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances might be required, which would result in an
additional selling expense in the period such determination was made.

Valuation of Trade Accounts Receivable
The Company evaluates the collectibility of its trade accounts
receivable based on a combination of factors. The Company regularly
analyzes its customer accounts and when it becomes aware of a
specific customer’s inability to meet its financial obligations, such as
in the case of bankruptcy or deterioration in the customer’s operating
results or financial position, a specific reserve for bad debt is recorded
to reduce the related receivable to the amount believed to be collect-
ible. The Company also records reserves for bad debt for all other
customers based on a variety of factors including length of time the
receivables are past due, the financial health of the customers, the
current business environment and historical experience. If circum-
stances related to specific customers change, estimates of the
recoverability of receivables would be adjusted resulting in either
additional selling expense or a reduction in selling expense in the
period such determination was made.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differ-
ences, net operating loss carryforwards and credit carryforwards if it
is more likely than not that the tax benefits will be realized. The
Company has considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for valuation
allowances. The Company has recorded a valuation allowance to
reduce its deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not
to be realized. In the event the Company was to determine that it
would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in the future in excess
of its net recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset
would increase either income or contributed capital in the period such
determination was made. Also, if the Company was to determine that
it would not be able to realize all or part of its net deferred tax asset in
the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would be charged to
either expense or contributed capital in the period such determination
was made.

Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assets
The Company reviews long-lived assets and the related intangible
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of an asset is determined by comparing its carrying
amount, including any associated intangible assets, to the forecasted
undiscounted net cash flows of the operation to which the asset relates.

If the operation is determined to be unable to recover the carrying
amount of its assets, then intangible assets are written down first,
followed by the other long-lived assets of the operation, to fair value.
Fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows or appraised
values, depending upon the nature of the assets. Goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an impairment indicator using a fair
value approach. In the event that, in the future, it is determined that the
Company’s intangible assets have been impaired, an adjustment would
be made that would result in a charge for the write-down in the period
that determination was made.

Inventory
The Company purchases and commits to purchase inventory based
upon forecasted shipments of its emulation hardware systems. The
Company evaluates, on a quarterly basis, the need for inventory
reserves based on projections of systems expected to ship within six
months. Reserves for excess and obsolete inventory are established to
account for the differences between forecasted shipments and the
amount of purchased and committed inventory.

Restructuring Charges
The Company has recorded restructuring charges in connection with
its plans to better align the cost structure with projected operations in
the future. These restructuring charges, which reflect management’s
commitment to a termination or exit plan that will be completed
within twelve months, are based on estimates of the expected costs
associated with severance benefits. If the actual cost incurred exceeds
the estimated cost, an additional charge to earnings will result. If the
actual cost is less than the estimated cost, a benefit to special charges
will be recognized.

The Company has also recorded restructuring charges in connection
with excess leased facilities to offset future rent, net of sublease
income, of the abandoned office space and to write-off leasehold
improvements on abandoned office space. The Company worked with
external real estate experts in each of the markets where properties are
located to obtain assumptions used to determine the best estimate of
the accrual. However, if the real estate markets worsen and the
Company is not able to sublease the properties as expected, additional
adjustments to the accrual may be required, which would result in an
additional charge to earnings in the period such determination was
made. Likewise, if the real estate market strengthens and the Company
is able to sublease the properties earlier or at more favorable rates than
projected, a benefit to special charges will be recognized.

RECENT ACQUISITIONS
In February 2002, the Company acquired Accelerated Technology, Inc.
(ATI), a provider of embedded software based in Mobile, Alabama.
The acquisition was an investment aimed at expanding the Company’s
product offering and driving revenue growth which supported the
premium paid over the fair market value of the individual assets. The
total purchase price including acquisition costs was $23,359, which
included the fair value of a warrant issued of $361. The excess of
liabilities assumed over tangible assets acquired was $1,808. The cost
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of the acquisition was allocated on the basis of the estimated fair value
of assets and liabilities assumed. The purchase accounting allocations
resulted in a charge for in-process research and development (R&D)
of $4,000, goodwill of $16,739, technology of $6,500, other identified
intangible assets of $880, net of related deferred tax liability of
$2,952. The technology will be amortized to cost of goods sold over
five years. Of the $880 other identified intangible assets, $480 was
determined to have an indefinite life at the time of acquisition and is
not being amortized. The Company will continue to evaluate whether
this asset’s useful life can be determined and, if so, will amortize the
asset accordingly. The remaining $400 will be amortized, primarily
over five years, to operating expenses.

In March 2002, the Company acquired IKOS Systems, Inc. (IKOS), a
provider of electronic design automation tools for the verification of
integrated circuit designs. The acquisition was an investment aimed at
expanding the Company’s product offering and driving revenue growth
which supported the premium paid over the fair market value of the
individual assets. The total purchase price including acquisition costs
was $124,420, which included the fair value of options assumed
totaling $3,823. In addition, the Company recorded severance costs
related to IKOS employees of $4,203 and costs of vacating certain
leased facilities of IKOS of $11,344. These costs will result in cash
expenditures of $14,048, with the remainder being non-cash write-offs
of leasehold improvements. Severance costs affected 70 employees
across all employee groups. This reduction was due to the overlap of
employee skill sets as a result of the acquisition. The excess of
tangible assets acquired over liabilities assumed was $11,057. The cost
of the acquisition was allocated on the basis of the estimated fair value
of assets and liabilities assumed. The preliminary purchase accounting
allocations resulted in a charge for in-process R&D of $12,000,
goodwill of $105,873, technology of $16,900, deferred compensation
relating to assumed unvested employee stock options of $695, other
identified intangible assets of $800, net of related deferred tax liability
of $7,358. The technology will be amortized to cost of goods sold over
five years. Deferred compensation will be amortized over ten quarters
to operating expenses and other identified intangible assets will be
amortized over one year to operating expenses.

In May 2002, the Company acquired Innoveda, Inc. (Innoveda), a
worldwide leader in electronic design automation technology, software
and services for businesses in the consumer electronics, computer,
telecommunications, automotive and aerospace industries. The acqui-
sition was an investment aimed at expanding the Company’s product
offering and driving revenue growth which supported the premium
paid over the fair market value of the individual assets. The total pur-
chase price including acquisition costs was $182,059, which included
the fair value of options assumed totaling $10,295. In addition, the
Company recorded severance costs related to Innoveda employees of
$4,416 and costs of vacating certain leased facilities of Innoveda of
$4,871. All of these costs will result in cash expenditures. Severance
costs affected 106 employees across all employee groups. This reduc-
tion was due to the overlap of employee skill sets as a result of the
acquisition. The excess of liabilities assumed over tangible assets
acquired was $5,673. The cost of the acquisition was allocated on the

basis of the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities assumed. The
preliminary purchase accounting allocations resulted in a charge for
in-process R&D of $12,700, goodwill of $169,790, technology of
$13,000, deferred compensation relating to assumed unvested
employee stock options of $5,765 and other identified intangible
assets of $5,450, net of related deferred tax liability of $9,686. The
technology will be amortized to cost of goods sold over five years.
Deferred compensation will be amortized over three years to operating
expenses. Of the $5,450 other identified intangible assets, $3,600 was
determined to have an indefinite life at the time of acquisition and is
not being amortized. The Company will continue to evaluate whether
this asset’s useful life can be determined and, if so, will amortize the
asset accordingly. The remaining $1,850 will be amortized primarily
over three years to operating expenses.

Subsequent to the acquisitions in 2002, the Company reversed $650 of
unamortized deferred compensation to common stock as a result of
forfeitures of unvested stock options assumed in the acquisitions due
to attrition and workforce reduction.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues and Gross Margins
Year ended December 31, 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000

System and software 
revenues $ 321,994 (3)% $ 333,215 (3)% $ 343,569

System and software 
gross margins $ 287,641 (6)% $ 306,478 (2)% $ 312,588
Gross margin percent 89% 92% 91%

Service and support 
revenues $ 274,185 3% $ 267,156 8% $ 246,266

Service and support 
gross margins $ 191,354 7% $ 179,220 13% $ 158,559
Gross margin percent 70% 67% 64%

Total revenues $ 596,179 (1)% $ 600,371 2% $ 589,835
Total gross margins $ 478,995 (1)% $ 485,698 3% $ 471,147

Gross margin percent 80% 81% 80%

System and Software
System and software revenues are derived from the sale of licenses of
software products and emulation hardware systems. IKOS product
revenues for the period from March 27 to December 31, 2002 of
$22,276 have been included in the Company’s revenues. Additionally,
Innoveda product revenues for the period from May 29 to December
31, 2002 of $10,409 have been included in the Company’s revenues.

Excluding the impact of IKOS and Innoveda revenues, the decrease in
system and software revenues for 2002 was attributable to a decrease
in both software product sales and emulation hardware system sales.
System and software sales declined as a result of the general downturn
in the economy and more specifically due to ongoing financial dif-
ficulties experienced by customers in the telecommunications market.
For 2001, the net decrease in system and software revenues was
attributable to a decline in emulation hardware system sales, partially
offset by increased software product sales. Emulation hardware system
sales declined in 2001 due to the downturn in the semiconductor and
telecommunications industries. For 2001, the increase in software
product sales was primarily due to continued strength in the Physical
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Verification and Analysis and Deep Submicron product lines. For
2001, this increase in software product revenue occurred despite
weakening of the Japanese yen versus the United States dollar which
negatively impacted revenues. See “Geographic Revenues Information”
for further discussion.

System and software gross margins were lower for 2002 compared to
2001 primarily due to a $5,731 write-down of emulation system
inventory in the second quarter to reduce the inventory to the amount
that was expected to ship within six months on the assumption that
any excess would be obsolete. Gross margin was also impacted by an
increase in amortization of purchased technology to cost of revenues
attributable to the acquisitions that occurred in 2002. System and
software gross margins were higher for 2001 compared to 2000 due to
greater mix of higher margin software product revenue versus lower
margin emulation hardware system revenue and to a lesser extent
lower product sales for which royalties were paid.

Amortization of purchased technology costs to system and software
cost of revenues was $6,688, $3,252 and $2,765 for 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The increase in 2002 was primarily attributable to
the acquisitions of ATI, IKOS and Innoveda during 2002. The increase
in amortization in 2001 was primarily attributable to the recognition of
a full year of amortization related to five acquisitions during 2000.
Purchased technology costs are amortized over three to five years to
system and software cost of revenues. Exclusive of future acquisitions,
amortization of purchased technology will increase in 2003 primarily
as a result of a full year of amortization on purchased technology
related to three acquisitions during 2002.

Service and Support
Service and support revenues consist of revenues from annual support
contracts and professional services, which includes consulting
services, training services, custom design services and other services.
IKOS support revenues for the period from March 27 to December 31,
2002 of $11,394 have been included in the Company’s revenues.
Additionally, Innoveda service and support revenues for the period
from May 29 to December 31, 2002 of $14,989 have been included in
the Company’s revenues. These increases were partially offset by a
40% decrease in consulting revenue as a result of cuts in spending by
the Company’s customers. For 2001 compared to 2000, the increase
was due to a 17% increase in software support revenues, partially
offset by a 29% decrease in consulting revenues. For 2001, growth in
software support revenues was attributable to software revenue growth
and continued success of software product offerings resulting in a
higher rate of contract renewals.

Professional service revenues totaled approximately $25,000, $40,000
and $54,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The decreases in
2002 and 2001 were attributable to cuts in spending by the Company’s
customers as a result of the downturn in the economy.

Service and support gross margins increased in 2002 primarily due to
cuts in professional service costs as a result of workforce rebalances
by the Company and due to a decrease in variable compensation due
to the decrease in revenue, excluding the impact of acquisitions.
Service and support gross margins increased in 2001 as a result of
higher software support revenue over a relatively constant cost
structure partially offset by lower professional service utilization.

Geographic Revenues Information
Year ended December 31, 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000

Americas $ 305,542 4% $ 293,828 5% $ 281,084
Europe $ 157,679 (9)% $ 174,025 (1)% $ 176,510
Japan $   81,757 (17)% $   97,947 (1)% $   98,707
Pac Rim $   51,201 48% $   34,571 3% $   33,534________ ________ ________

Total $ 596,179 $ 600,371 $ 589,835________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

Revenues increased in the Americas in 2002 primarily as a result of
the acquisitions that occurred in the first half of 2002. This increase
was partially offset by declines in both base product sales and
consulting revenues. Revenues outside the Americas represented 49%
of total revenues in 2002, 51% of revenues in 2001 and 52% of
revenues in 2000. The effects of exchange rate differences from the
European currencies to the United States dollar positively impacted
European revenues by approximately 1% in 2002 and negatively
impacted revenues by approximately 1% in 2001. Exclusive of
currency effects, lower revenues in Europe for 2002 were primarily a
result of declines in the Company’s base product sales and consulting
revenues. The effects of exchange rate differences from the Japanese
yen to the United States dollar negatively impacted Japanese revenues
by approximately 1% and 12% in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Exclusive of currency effects, lower revenues in Japan for 2002 were
primarily attributable to a decline in the Company’s base product sales,
while higher revenues in Japan for 2001 were attributable to growth in
support sales. Higher revenues in Pac Rim were attributable to growth
in both product and support sales. Since the Company generates
approximately half of its revenues outside of the United States and
expects this to continue in the future, revenue results should continue
to be impacted by the effects of future foreign currency fluctuations.

Operating Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000

Research and 
development $ 164,228 19% $ 137,799 9% $ 125,952
Percent of total revenues 28% 23% 21%

Marketing and selling $ 218,963 10% $ 198,639 0% $ 197,733
Percent of total revenues 37% 33% 34%

General and 
administration $   72,491 12% $   64,954 (3)% $   66,707
Percent of total revenues 12% 11% 11%

Amortization of 
intangible assets $     2,255 (70)% $     7,520 154% $     2,965
Percent of total revenues 0% 1% 1%

Special charges $     6,184 (87)% $   46,343 1675% $     2,611
Percent of total revenues 1% 8% 0%

Merger and acquisition 
related charges $   28,700 – $            – (100)% $   11,590
Percent of total revenues 5% – 2%
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Research and Development
As a percent of revenues, R&D costs increased from 2001 to 2002 and
from 2000 to 2001. For 2002 compared to 2001, the increase in absolute
dollars was primarily attributable to acquisitions in 2002, resulting in
higher headcount. For 2001 compared to 2000, the increase in R&D
spending was primarily attributable to acquisitions in the fourth
quarter of 2000.

Marketing and Selling
As a percent of revenues, marketing and selling costs increased from
2001 to 2002 and decreased from 2000 to 2001. For 2002 compared to
2001, the increase in absolute dollars was primarily attributable to
acquisitions in 2002, resulting in higher headcount. For 2001 compared
to 2000, the increase in absolute dollars was primarily attributable to
an increase in variable compensation due to growth in revenues.

General and Administration
As a percent of revenues, general and administration costs increased
from 2001 to 2002 and remained flat from 2000 to 2001. For 2002
compared to 2001, the increase in absolute dollars was primarily
attributable to acquisitions in 2002, resulting in higher headcount, and
a net increase in non-Quickturn related legal costs. These increases
were partially offset by a decrease in variable compensation due to the
decrease in operating income. For 2001 compared to 2000, the
decrease in absolute dollars was primarily attributable to lower legal
costs associated with the ongoing patent litigation with Quickturn,
which totaled $7,758 in 2001, compared to $11,705 in 2000. This
decrease was partially offset by expense in 2001 of $2,631 for
unvested 401(k) contributions previously classified as prepaid
expense. During 2001, market circumstances were such that employee
turnover declined significantly resulting in the Company changing its
estimate of expense for 401(k) contributions. General and administra-
tion expenses include costs of the ongoing Quickturn litigation of
$6,588, $7,758 and $11,705 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
See Part I – Item 3. “Legal Proceedings” for further discussion on the
Company’s current legal proceedings.

Amortization of Intangible Assets
As a percent of revenues and in absolute dollars, amortization of
intangible assets decreased from 2001 to 2002 and increased from
2000 to 2001. For 2002 compared to 2001, the decrease was primarily
attributable to the termination of goodwill amortization in 2002 as a
result of the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibles,” partially offset by the
amortization related to additional intangible assets acquired through
acquisitions in the first half of 2002. For 2001 compared to 2000, the
increase in amortization of intangible assets was attributable to acqui-
sitions in the fourth quarter of 2000. Amortization of intangible assets
is expected to increase in 2003 as a result of a full year of amortization
on the intangible assets acquired through the acquisitions in 2002.

Special Charges
During 2002, the Company recorded special charges of $6,184. The
charges primarily consist of costs incurred for employee terminations,
partially offset by a net benefit from reduction of accrued excess

leased facility costs. Additionally, a $515 benefit for the reversal of
excess accruals related to acquisitions that occurred in prior years is
included in special charges.

In addition to acquisition related terminations of 176, the Company
rebalanced the workforce by 332 employees during 2002. This
reduction primarily impacted the sales organization, research and
development organization and, to a lesser extent, the consulting
division. Employee severance costs of $12,023 included severance
benefits, notice pay and outplacement services. Termination benefits
were communicated to the affected employees prior to year-end. The
majority of these costs will be expended in the first half of 2003. There
have been no significant modifications to the amount of these charges.

The Company recorded excess leased facility costs for leases of
facilities in North America and Europe in the fourth quarter of 2001
based on the presumption that such facilities would be permanently
abandoned. During 2002, the Company determined that a facility in
North America was to be re-occupied as a result of requirements
following recent acquisitions. At that time, the remaining accrual for
$5,855 was reversed. In addition, the Company reduced its accrual for
lease termination fees by $777 as a result of changes in assumptions
regarding lease payments for an abandoned facility in Europe. In
2002, the Company also recorded $1,223 related to non-cancelable
lease payments, net of sublease income, and a $299 write-off of assets
and leasehold improvements for leases of facilities in North America,
Europe and Japan that will be permanently abandoned in 2003. The
majority of the non-cancelable lease payments on these excess leased
facilities will be expended within the next twelve months.

During 2002, the Company recorded a benefit to special charges of
$2,066 as a result of a reversal of a hold-back liability recorded as a
part of the acquisition of the ECAD division of CADIX Incorporated
in 2000. Cadix Incorporated relinquished its right to the hold-back
amount in exchange for the Company’s withdrawal of its filing of
damage claims. In an unrelated matter, this benefit was partially offset
by the Company’s payment of $1,500 related to the settlement of
disputed royalties. These settlements resulted in a net benefit to
special charges of $566.

During 2001, the Company recorded special charges of $46,343. The
charges primarily consisted of impairment in value of certain goodwill
and purchased technology, an accrual for excess leased facility costs
and costs incurred for employee terminations.

The goodwill and purchased technology impairment charge was due to
performance of acquired businesses not meeting initial estimates. This
charge was determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted net
cash flows of the operations to which the intangible assets related, to
the carrying amount including associated intangible assets of such
operations. The operations were determined to be unable to recover the
carrying amount of their assets, resulting in a write-down to fair value.

Excess leased facility costs consisted of non-cancelable lease
payments of $9,560 and write-off of leasehold improvements of $954
for leases of four facilities in North America and Europe. These
facilities were permanently abandoned and costs are net of estimated
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sublease income. Non-cancelable lease payments on excess leased
facilities should be expended over 14 years, with the majority to be
expended over 5 years.

The Company rebalanced the workforce by 79 employees in June and
December 2001. This reduction primarily impacted the sales organiza-
tion and to a lesser extent the consulting division. Employee severance
costs of $3,365 included severance benefits, notice pay and outplace-
ment services. Termination benefits were communicated to the
affected employees prior to year-end. The majority of these costs were
expended in 2001 and the remaining amount was primarily expended
in the first half of 2002. There have been no significant modifications
to the amount of these charges.

During 2000, the Company recorded special charges of $2,611. The
charges consisted of impairment in value of certain goodwill and
purchased technology and costs for employee terminations due to the
acquisition of Escalade Corp. in May 2000. Substantially all of these
costs were expended in 2000 and the remaining amount was primarily
expended in the first half of 2001. There have been no significant
modifications to the amount of the charges.

Merger and Acquisition Related Charges
In 2002, the Company incurred merger and acquisition related charges
of $28,700 for in-process R&D related to three acquisitions during the
year. In 2001, the Company incurred no merger and acquisition related
charges. In 2000, the Company incurred merger and acquisition
related charges of $11,590 for in-process R&D related to four of the
five business combinations accounted for as purchases.

The Company uses an independent third party valuation firm to deter-
mine the value of the in-process R&D acquired in its business acquisi-
tions. The value assigned to in-process R&D for the charges incurred
in 2000 and 2002 related to research projects for which technological
feasibility had not been established. The value was determined by
estimating the net cash flows from the sale of products resulting from
the completion of such projects and discounting the net cash flows
back to their present value. The rate used to discount the net cash
flows was based on the weighted average cost of capital. Other factors
considered were the inherent uncertainties in future revenue estimates
from technology investments including the uncertainty surrounding
the successful development of the acquired in-process technology, the
useful life of the technology, the profitability levels of the technology
and the stage of completion of the technology. The stage of completion
of the products at the date of the acquisition were estimated based on
R&D costs that had been expended as of the date of acquisition as
compared to total R&D costs expected at completion. The percentages
derived from this calculation were then applied to the net present value
of future cash flows to determine the in-process charge. The nature of
the efforts to develop the in-process technology into commercially
viable products principally related to the completion of all planning,
designing, prototyping, verification and testing activities that are

necessary to establish that the product can be produced to meet its
design specification, including function, features and technical
performance requirements. The estimated net cash flows from these
products were based on estimates of related revenues, cost of sales,
R&D costs, selling, general and administrative costs and income taxes.
These estimates are subject to change, given the uncertainties of the
development process, and no assurance can be given that deviations
from these estimates will not occur or that the Company will realize
any anticipated benefits of the acquisition. The risks associated with
acquired R&D are considered high and no assurance can be made that
these products will generate any benefit or meet market expectations.

The in-process R&D charge related to the ATI acquisition was $4,000.
At the date of the ATI acquisition, the R&D efforts were focused on
the development of the Nucleus and code | lab products. The in-process
R&D charge related to each of those projects was $1,500 and $2,500,
respectively. For purposes of valuing the in-process R&D in
accordance with the methodology discussed above, the following
estimates were used: revenue growth ranging from 414% beginning in
year two to a revenue decline of 51% in year eight; cost of revenues of
approximately 15% of revenue in each year; selling, general and
administrative expenses ranging from 49% of revenue in year one to
35% of revenue in year eight and maintenance of 5% of revenue in
each year. The rate used to discount the net cash flows from the
purchased in-process technology was 35%.

The in-process R&D charge related to the IKOS acquisition was
$12,000. At the date of the IKOS acquisition, the R&D efforts were
focused on the development of the next generation Vstation product,
including the additional functionalities of a co-modeling tool, more
capacity and an FPGA compiler. For purposes of valuing the in-process
R&D in accordance with the methodology discussed above, the follow-
ing estimates were used: revenue growth ranging from 194% beginning
in year two to 30% in year six; cost of revenues of 20% of revenue in
each year; selling, general and administrative expenses ranging from
50% of revenue in year one to 35% of revenue in year six and main-
tenance of 5% of revenue in each year. The rate used to discount the
net cash flows from the purchased in-process technology was 30%.

The in-process R&D charge related to the Innoveda acquisition was
$12,700. At the date of the Innoveda acquisition, the R&D efforts
were focused on the development of the following products: Integrated
PCB, QUIET™ Expert and TransDesign v1.4. The in-process R&D
charge related to each of those projects was $11,600, $300 and $800,
respectively. For purposes of valuing the in-process R&D in
accordance with the methodology discussed above, the following
estimates were used: revenue growth ranging from 528% for certain
products beginning in year two to a revenue decline of 48% in year
six; cost of revenues of 18% of revenue in each year; selling, general
and administrative expenses of 30% of revenue in each year and
maintenance ranging from 2% to 7% of revenue in each year. The rate
used to discount the net cash flows from the purchased in-process
technology was 35% for Integrated PCB and 50% for QUIET Expert
and TransDesign v1.4.
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Other Income, Net
Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Other income, net $    6,905 $  10,932 $    9,310

Interest income was $6,653, $11,954 and $10,421 in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The decrease from 2001 to 2002 was primarily a
result of lower cash balances in 2002 due to three acquisitions during
the year. Foreign currency loss was $199 in 2002 compared to gains of
$689 and $450 in 2001 and 2000, respectively, due to fluctuations in
currency rates. The Company recorded income relating to the time
value of foreign currency contracts of $1,020, $2,454 and $341 in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Minority interest expense was
$703, $408 and $1,383 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. In
addition, other income, net was favorably impacted by a gain on sale
of investment of $2,438 and $933 in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Interest Expense
Interest expense was $11,696, $2,504 and $2,403 in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. Interest expense increased in 2002 primarily as a
result of the issuance of the Company’s convertible subordinated notes
in June 2002. In addition, interest expense increased as a result of
$2,104 in loan fees, $659 for the amortization of convertible sub-
ordinated notes fees. The Company recorded interest expense relating
to the time value of foreign currency contracts of $551, $194 and $64
in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Interest expense was previously
included in other income, net, but has been reclassified for all periods
presented in this report.

Provision for Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes was a benefit of $4,303 in 2002 and an
expense of $7,767 and $15,509 in 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
net tax provision (benefit) in all periods is the result of the mix of
profits (losses) earned by the Company and its subsidiaries in tax
jurisdictions with a broad range of income tax rates. The provision for
income taxes differs from tax computed at the federal statutory
income tax rate due to the impact of nondeductible charges mostly
related to acquisitions, offset by the realized benefit of net operating
loss carryforwards, foreign tax credits and earnings permanently
reinvested in foreign operations.

The Company provides for United States income taxes on the earnings
of foreign subsidiaries unless they are considered permanently invested
outside of the United States. At December 31, 2002, the cumulative
amount of earnings upon which United States income taxes have not
been provided are approximately $191,958. Upon repatriation, some
of these earnings would generate foreign tax credits which may reduce
the Federal tax liability associated with any future foreign dividend.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company, for federal income tax pur-
poses, had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $3,659,
foreign tax credits of $5,659, alternative minimum tax credit of $399
and research and experimentation credit carryforwards of $17,353. As
of December 31, 2002, the Company, for state income tax purposes,
had net operating loss carryforwards totaling $19,956 from multiple
jurisdictions and research and experimentation credits of $4,078. As 
of December 31, 2002, the Company also had net operating losses in

multiple foreign jurisdictions of $23,418. If not used by the Company
to reduce income taxes payable in future periods, net operating loss
carryforwards will expire between 2003 and 2022, the foreign tax
credits will expire between 2005 and 2007 and research and
experimentation credit carryforwards between 2003 and 2022.

In 2002, the Company transferred certain technology rights acquired
in the ATI, IKOS and Innoveda acquisitions to one of its wholly owned
foreign subsidiaries in a transaction that will generate approximately
$110,000 of taxable gain for federal and state income tax purposes
over the next three years, with approximately $65,000 recognized in
2002. Due to the intercompany nature of the transfer, the associated
income tax expense is being recorded over a three-year period with
$6,783 of expense recorded in 2002. The remaining federal and state
income tax expense of $25,463 is recorded as a deferred tax charge
included in other assets, net on the Company’s balance sheet as of
December 31, 2002 and is to be amortized to the book provision for
income taxes over the remaining years. The recognition of a taxable
gain in the United States allowed the Company to utilize domestic
deferred tax assets for which a valuation allowance had previously
been taken. Accordingly, primarily as a result of the intercompany
sale, the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets decreased by
$22,223 in 2002, with $20,831 of the related benefit being applied
directly to contributed capital as tax benefit of stock option exercises
and the remainder contributing to the 2002 income tax (benefit).

Under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between
financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are
measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. SFAS No. 109 provides
for the recognition of deferred tax assets if realization of such assets is
more likely than not. Based on the weight of available evidence, the
Company has provided a valuation allowance against certain deferred
tax assets. The portion of the valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets related to the difference between financial and tax reporting of
employee stock option exercises, for which subsequently recognized
tax benefits will be applied directly to contributed capital, will be
maintained until such benefits are actually realized on the Company’s
income tax returns. The remainder of the valuation allowance was
based on the historical earnings patterns within individual taxing
jurisdictions that make it uncertain that the Company will have
sufficient income in the appropriate jurisdictions to realize the full
value of the assets. The Company will continue to evaluate the
realizability of the deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis.

Effects of Foreign Currency Fluctuations
Approximately half of the Company’s revenues are generated outside
of the United States. For 2002, 2001 and 2000, approximately one-half
to two-thirds of European and all Japanese revenues were subject to
exchange rate fluctuations as they were booked in local currencies.
The effects of these fluctuations were substantially offset by local
currency cost of revenues and operating expenses, which resulted in
an immaterial net effect on the Company’s results of operations.
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Foreign currency translation adjustment, a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income reported in the stockholders’ equity
section of the consolidated balance sheets, increased to $17,606 at
December 31, 2002 from $10,736 at December 31, 2001. This reflects
the increase in the value of net assets denominated in foreign curren-
cies since year-end 2001 as a result of a weaker United States dollar at
the close of 2002 versus 2001.

New Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.”
This statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for obli-
gations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and
the associated asset retirement costs. The Company is required to
implement SFAS No. 143 on January 1, 2003. The Company does not
expect this statement to have a material impact on its consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”. This statement nullifies
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3 (EITF 94-3), “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other
Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost
associated with an exit or disposal activity is recognized when the
liability is incurred. Under EITF 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as
defined in EITF 94-3 was recognized at the date of an entity’s com-
mitment to an exit plan. The provisions of SFAS No. 146 are effective
for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31,
2002. SFAS No. 146 will be adopted on a prospective basis and
therefore did not have an impact as of December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force reached a con-
sensus on Issue No. 00-21 (EITF 00-21), “Revenue Arrangements
with Multiple Deliverables”. EITF 00-21 addresses certain aspects of
the accounting by a vendor for arrangements under which the vendor
will perform multiple revenue generating activities. EITF 00-21 will
be effective for interim periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The
Company does not expect this issue to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No.
45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”.
FIN No. 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, a guarantor
must recognize a liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed
under a guarantee. FIN No. 45 also requires additional disclosures by
a guarantor in its financial statements about the obligations associated
with guarantees issued. The initial recognition and measurement
provisions of FIN No. 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to guar-
antees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure
requirements of FIN No. 45 are effective for financial statements
issued after December 15, 2002. The Company does not expect this
interpretation to have a material impact on its consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, Transition and Disclosure”. SFAS No.
148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change
to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure re-
quirements of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compen-
sation”, to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported
results. As allowed under SFAS No. 148, the Company will continue
to account for stock-based compensation according to APB Opinion
No. 25. The Company adopted the disclosure provisions of SFAS No.
148 effective December 31, 2002.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001

Current assets $  240,194 $  326,927
Cash and investments, short-term $    38,826 $  147,176
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities $    (4,516) $    57,677
Cash used by investing activities, 
excluding short-term investments $ (306,354) $  (23,973)

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities $  195,715 $  (24,035)

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments were $38,826 at
December 31, 2002, a decrease of $108,350, or 74%, from $147,176
at December 31, 2001. Cash used in operating activities was $4,516 in
2002 compared to cash provided by operating activities of $57,677 in
2001. The decrease in cash flows from operating activities was
primarily due to higher operating and interest expenses in 2002.

Cash used in investing activities, excluding short-term investments,
was $306,354 in 2002 compared to $23,973 in 2001. The increase of
$282,381 in 2002 in cash used in investing activities was primarily due
to cash paid for acquisitions of $288,383 in 2002 compared to $6,216
paid in 2001 related to acquisitions completed during 2002. Cash used
in investing activities also included capital expenditures of $20,409
and $18,690 in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Cash provided by financing activities was $195,715 in 2002 compared
to $24,035 used in financing activities in 2001. The increase of
$219,750 in 2002 in cash provided by financing activities was due to
proceeds of $177,831 primarily from the issuance of convertible
subordinated notes. Financing cash flows were positively impacted by
proceeds from the issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options and employee stock plan purchases of $17,663 and $18,623 in
2002 and 2001, respectively. Cash used in financing activities in 2001
included a repurchase of 1,621 shares of common stock for $39,658.

Trade Accounts Receivable
Trade accounts receivable increased to $159,657 at December 31, 2002
from $139,391 at December 31, 2001. Excluding the current portion of
term receivables of $81,697 and $62,749, average days sales outstand-
ing were 39 days and 42 days at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively. Average days sales outstanding in total accounts receivable in-
creased from 76 days at the end of 2001 to 80 days at the end of 2002.
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The increase in total accounts receivable days sales outstanding was
primarily due to fewer extended term (generally three year) contract
sales in the fourth quarter of 2002 compared to the fourth quarter of
2001, partially offset by the factoring of short-term accounts receiv-
able in the fourth quarter of 2002. In quarters where term contract
revenue is recorded, only about one-third, or twelve months, of the
receivable is reflected in current trade accounts receivable. In the
following quarters, the same amount is reflected in current trade
accounts receivable without the corresponding revenue. The Company
sold short-term accounts receivable of $13,441 to a financing
institution on a non-recourse basis in the fourth quarter of 2002
compared to no sales of short-term accounts receivable in the fourth
quarter of 2001. The Company records a sale when it is considered to
have surrendered control of such receivables under the provisions of
SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.”

Inventory, Net
Inventory decreased to $4,141 at December 31, 2002 from $5,009 at
December 31, 2001. Inventory increased in the first quarter of 2002 as
a result of the IKOS acquisition and subsequently decreased primarily
due to a $5,731 write-down of emulation hardware inventory in the
second quarter, including a portion of the IKOS inventory, to reduce
inventory to the amount that was expected to ship within six months
on the assumption that any excess would be obsolete. This write-down
was partially offset by an increase in inventory in the fourth quarter
due to purchases based on forecasted shipments of next generation
emulation hardware products.

Prepaid Expenses and Other
Prepaid expenses and other increased to $11,756 at December 31,
2002 from $11,031 at December 31, 2001. The increase is primarily
due to deferred loan fees related to the convertible subordinated notes
issued in 2002. Deferred loan fees are amortized to interest expense
over the terms of their respective debt instruments.

Term Receivables, Long-Term
Term receivables, long-term increased to $78,431 at December 31,
2002 compared to $58,922 at December 31, 2001. The balances were
attributable to multi-year, multi-element term license sales agreements
principally from the Company’s top-rated credit customers. Balances
under term agreements that are due within one year are included in
trade accounts receivable and balances that are due in more than one
year are included in term receivables, long-term. The Company uses
term agreements as a standard business practice and has a history of
successfully collecting under the original payment terms without
making concessions on payments, products or services. The increase
was primarily attributable to growth in the number of term agreements
beginning during 2002 and 2001, which were included in term
receivables, long-term at December 31, 2002.

Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities
Accrued payroll and related liabilities increased $3,328 to $51,250
from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002. The increase was
primarily due to growth in the Company’s headcount.

Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities increased $20,481 to $45,233 from December 31,
2001 to December 31, 2002. The increase was primarily due to
accrued liabilities related to acquisitions, excess leased facility costs
and accrued termination benefits.

Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue consists primarily of prepaid annual software
support contracts. Deferred revenue increased $15,988 to $72,902
from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002 primarily due to the
acquisitions of ATI, IKOS and Innoveda.

Capital Resources
Expenditures for property and equipment increased to $20,409 for
2002 compared to $18,690 for 2001. Expenditures in 2002 and 2001
did not include any individually significant projects. In 2002, the
Company completed three business acquisitions which resulted in net
cash payments of $288,383. In 2001, the Company did not complete
any business acquisitions.

In June 2002, the Company issued $172,500 of 6-7/8% Convertible
Subordinated Notes (“Notes”) due 2007 in a private offering pursuant
to SEC Rule 144A to fund the purchase of Innoveda. The Notes have
been registered with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933. The
Company pays interest on the Notes semi-annually in June and
December. The Notes are convertible into the Company’s common
stock at a conversion price of $23.27 per share, for a total of 7,413
shares. Some or all of the Notes may be redeemed by the Company for
cash on or after June 20, 2005.

The Company anticipates that current cash balances, anticipated cash
flows from operating activities and amounts available under existing
credit facilities will be sufficient to meet its working capital needs on
a short-term and long-term basis.

The Company does not have off-balance sheet arrangements, financings
or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons,
also known as special purpose entities. In the ordinary course of
business, the Company leases certain real properties, primarily field
office facilities, and equipment.

Contractual Obligations
The Company is contractually obligated to make the following
payments as of December 31, 2002:

Payments due by period
Less than 1-3 3-5 More than

Total 1 year years years 5 years

Convertible 
subordinated notes $ 172,500 $            – $            – $ 172,500 $            –

Other long-term 
notes payable 4,732 – 2,704 2,028 –

Other long-term 
liabilities 19,275 – 8,737 3,929 6,609

Short-term borrowings 17,349 17,349 – – –
Capital leases 774 321 453 – –
Purchase obligations 4,675 4,675 – – –
Operating leases 141,912 28,581 43,248 29,207 40,876________ ________ ________ ________ ________
Total contractual 
obligations $ 361,217 $   50,926 $   55,142 $ 207,664 $   47,485________ ________ ________ ________ ________________ ________ ________ ________ ________
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OUTLOOK FOR 2003
Revenues for the year 2003 are expected in the range of $665,000.
Gross margin, excluding the amortization of purchased technology, is
expected to average 83% for the year. Operating expenses, exclusive
of special charges, merger and acquisition related charges and amorti-
zation of intangible assets are estimated to increase about 10% over
2002 levels. The total of interest expense and other income, net is
expected to be an expense of approximately $10,000 primarily due to
interest on the convertible subordinated notes for the year. The tax rate
is expected to be 20% for the year.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS 
AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
The statements contained under “Outlook for 2003” above and other
statements contained in this report that are not statements of historical
fact, including without limitation, statements containing the words
“believes,” “expects,” “projections” and words of similar import,
constitute forward-looking statements that involve a number of risks
and uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Moreover, from time to
time, the Company may issue other forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements regarding financial performance in future
periods, including the statements above under “Outlook for 2003”, do
not reflect potential impacts of mergers or acquisitions or other
significant transactions or events that have not been announced as of
the time the statements are made. Actual outcomes and results may
differ materially from what is expressed or forecast in forward-looking
statements. The Company disclaims any obligation to update forward-
looking statements to reflect future events or revised expectations. The
following discussion highlights factors that could cause actual results
to differ materially from the results expressed or implied by the
Company’s forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements
should be considered in light of these factors.

Weakness in the United States and international economies 
may materially adversely affect the Company.
United States and international economies are experiencing an
economic downturn which has had an adverse affect on the Company’s
results of operations. Continued weakness in these economies is likely
to continue to adversely affect the timing and receipt of orders for the
Company’s products and the Company’s results of operations. Revenue
levels are dependent on the level of technology capital spending,
which include expenditures for electronic design automation, or EDA,
software and other consulting services, in the United States and abroad.
A number of telecommunications companies have in the recent past
filed for bankruptcy protection, and others have announced significant
reductions and deferrals in capital spending. A significant portion of
the Company’s revenues has historically come from businesses
operating in this sector. In addition, demand for the Company’s
products and services may be adversely affected by mergers and
company restructurings in the electronics industry worldwide which
could result in decreased or delayed capital spending patterns.

The Company is subject to the cyclical nature of the integrated
circuit and electronics systems industries, and the current
downturn has, and any future downturns may, materially
adversely affect the Company.
Purchases of the Company’s products and services are highly depend-
ent upon new design projects initiated by integrated circuit manufac-
turers and electronics systems companies. The integrated circuit
industry is highly cyclical and is subject to constant and rapid tech-
nological change, rapid product obsolescence, price erosion, evolving
standards, short product life cycles and wide fluctuations in product
supply and demand. The integrated circuit and electronics systems
industries have experienced significant downturns, often connected
with, or in anticipation of, maturing product cycles of both companies
in these industries and their customers’ products and a decline in
general economic conditions. These downturns have caused dimin-
ished product demand, production overcapacity, high inventory levels
and accelerated erosion of average selling prices. Certain integrated
circuit manufacturers and electronics systems companies announced a
slowdown of demand and production in 2001, which continued in
2002. During downturns such as the current one, the number of new
design projects decreases. The current slowdown has reduced, and any
future downturns are likely to further reduce, the Company’s revenue
and could materially adversely affect the Company.

Fluctuations in quarterly results of operations due to the timing
of significant orders and the mix of licenses used to sell the
Company’s products could hurt the Company’s business and the
market price of the Company’s common stock.
The Company has experienced, and may continue to experience, varied
quarterly operating results. Various factors affect the Company’s
quarterly operating results and some of these are not within the
Company’s control, including the timing of significant orders and the
mix of licenses used to sell the Company’s products. The Company
receives a material amount of its software product revenue from
current quarter order performance, of which a substantial amount is
usually booked in the last few weeks of each quarter. A portion of the
Company’s revenue often comes from multi-million dollar contracts,
the timing of the completion of and the terms of delivery of which can
have a material impact on revenue recognition for a given quarter. If
the Company fails to receive expected orders in a particular quarter,
particularly large orders, the Company’s revenues for that quarter
could be adversely affected and the Company could fail to meet
analysts’ expectations which could adversely affect the Company’s
stock price.

The Company uses fixed-term installment sales agreements as a stan-
dard business practice. These multi-year, multi-element term license
agreements are typically three years in length and are used with larger
customers that the Company believes are credit-worthy. These agree-
ments increase the risk associated with collectibility from customers
that can arise for a variety of reasons including ability to pay, product
dissatisfaction, disagreements and disputes. If the Company is unable
to collect under any of these multi-million dollar agreements, the
Company’s results of operations could be adversely affected.
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The Company’s revenue is also affected by the mix of licenses entered
into in connection with the sale of software products. The Company’s
software licenses fall into three general categories: perpetual, fixed-
term and subscription. With perpetual and fixed-term licenses, the
Company recognizes software product revenue at the beginning of the
license period, while with subscription licenses the Company recognizes
software product revenue ratably over the license period. Accordingly,
a shift in the license mix toward increased subscription licenses would
result in increased deferral of software product revenue to future
periods and would decrease current revenue, possibly resulting in the
Company not meeting revenue expectations.

The accounting rules governing software revenue recognition have
been subject to authoritative interpretations that have generally made it
more difficult to recognize software product revenue at the beginning
of the license period. These new and revised standards and interpre-
tations could adversely affect the Company’s ability to meet revenue
projections and affect the Company’s stock price.

The gross margin on the Company’s software products is greater than
that for the Company’s hardware products, software support and
professional services. Therefore, the Company’s gross margin may
vary as a result of the mix of products and services sold. Additionally,
the margin on software products varies year to year depending on the
amount of third-party royalties due to third parties for the mix of
products sold. The Company also has a significant amount of fixed or
relatively fixed costs, such as professional service employee costs and
purchased technology amortization, and variable costs which are com-
mitted in advance and can only be adjusted periodically. If anticipated
revenue does not materialize as expected, the Company’s gross
margins and operating results could be materially adversely affected.

The lengthy sales cycle for the Company’s products and services
and delay in customer consummation of projects makes the
timing of the Company’s revenue difficult to predict.
The Company has a lengthy sales cycle that generally extends between
three and six months. The complexity and expense associated with the
Company’s products and services generally requires a lengthy cus-
tomer evaluation and approval process. Consequently, the Company
may incur substantial expenses and devote significant management
effort and expense to develop potential relationships that do not result
in agreements or revenue and may prevent the Company from pursuing
other opportunities. In addition, sales of the Company’s products and
services may be delayed if customers delay approval or commence-
ment of projects because of customers’ budgetary constraints, internal
acceptance review procedures, timing of budget cycles or timing of
competitive evaluation processes.

Intense competition in the EDA industry could materially
adversely affect the Company.
Competition in the EDA industry is intense, which can lead to, among
other things, price reductions, longer selling cycles, lower product
margins, loss of market share and additional working capital require-
ments. The Company’s success depends upon the Company’s ability to
acquire or develop and market products and services that are innova-
tive and cost-competitive and that meet customer expectations.

The Company currently competes primarily with two large companies:
Cadence Design Systems, Inc. and Synopsys, Inc. In June 2002,
Synopsys completed its acquisition of Avant! Corporation and the
combined company could improve its competitive position with
respect to the Company. The Company also competes with numerous
smaller companies, a number of which have combined with other
EDA companies. The Company also competes with manufacturers of
electronic devices that have developed, or have the capability to
develop, their own EDA products internally.

Risks of international operations and the effects of foreign
currency fluctuations can adversely impact the Company’s
business and operating results.
The Company realized approximately half of the Company’s revenue
from customers outside the United States for each of the years ended
December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002. To hedge against the impact of
foreign currency fluctuations, the Company enters into foreign cur-
rency forward and option contracts. However, significant changes in
exchange rates may have a material adverse impact on the Company.
In addition, international operations subject the Company to other
risks including, but not limited to, longer receivables collection
periods, changes in a specific country’s or region’s economic or
political conditions, trade protection measures, import or export
licensing requirements, loss or modification of exemptions for taxes
and tariffs, limitations on repatriation of earnings and difficulties with
licensing and protecting the Company’s intellectual property rights.

Delay in production of components or the ordering of excess
components for the Company’s Mentor Emulation Division hard-
ware products could materially adversely affect the Company.
The success of the Company’s Mentor Emulation Division depends on
the Company’s ability to:

■ procure hardware components on a timely basis from a limited
number of suppliers;

■ assemble and ship systems on a timely basis with appropriate quality
control;

■ develop distribution and shipment processes;

■ manage inventory and related obsolescence issues; and

■ develop processes to deliver customer support for hardware.

The Company’s inability to be successful in any of the foregoing could
materially adversely affect the Company.

The Company occasionally commits to purchase component parts
from suppliers based on sales forecasts of the Company’s Mentor
Emulation Division’s products. If the Company cannot change or be
released from these non-cancelable purchase commitments, or if
orders for the Company’s products do not materialize as anticipated,
the Company could incur significant costs related to the purchase of
excess components which could become obsolete before the Company
can use them. Additionally, a delay in production of the components
could materially adversely affect the Company’s operating results.
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Current litigation with Quickturn, a subsidiary of Cadence
Design Systems, Inc., over certain patents could affect the
Company’s ability to sell the Company’s emulation products.
The Company has been sued by Quickturn, which alleges that the
Company and certain of the Company’s emulation hardware products
have infringed certain Quickturn patents. This litigation could adversely
affect the Company’s ability to sell the Company’s emulation hard-
ware products in various jurisdictions worldwide and may decrease
demand for the Company’s emulation hardware products worldwide.
Such litigation could also result in lower sales of emulation hardware
products, increase the risk of inventory obsolescence and have a
material adverse effect on the Company.

The Company’s failure to obtain software or other intellectual
property licenses or adequately protect the Company’s
proprietary rights could materially adversely affect the Company.
The Company’s success depends, in part, upon the Company’s
proprietary technology. Many of the Company’s products include
software or other intellectual property licensed from third parties, and
the Company may have to seek new licenses or renew existing licenses
for software and other intellectual property in the future. The
Company’s failure to obtain software or other intellectual property
licenses or rights on favorable terms, or the need to engage in
litigation over these licenses or rights, could materially adversely
affect the Company.

The Company generally relies on patents, copyrights, trademarks,
trade secret laws, licenses and restrictive agreements to establish and
protect the Company’s proprietary rights in technology and products.
Despite precautions the Company may take to protect the Company’s
intellectual property, the Company cannot assure that third parties will
not try to challenge, invalidate or circumvent these safeguards. The
Company also cannot assure that the rights granted under the Com-
pany’s patents will provide it with any competitive advantages, that
patents will be issued on any of the Company’s pending applications
or that future patents will be sufficiently broad to protect the Company’s
technology. Furthermore, the laws of foreign countries may not protect
the Company’s proprietary rights in those countries to the same extent
as United States law protects these rights in the United States.

The Company cannot assure you that the Company’s reliance on
licenses from or to, or restrictive agreements with, third parties, or that
patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret protections, will be suffi-
cient for success and profitability in the industries in which it competes.

Intellectual property infringement by or against us could
materially adversely affect the Company.
There are numerous patents held by the Company and the Company’s
competitors in the EDA industry, and new patents are being issued at a
rapid rate. It is not always economically practicable or possible to
determine in advance whether a product or any of its components
infringes the patent rights of others. As a result, from time to time, 
the Company may be forced to respond to, or prosecute, intellectual
property infringement claims to protect the Company’s rights or
defend a customer’s rights. These claims, regardless of merit, could

consume valuable management time, result in costly litigation and
cause product shipment delays, all of which could materially adversely
affect the Company. In settling these claims, the Company may be
required to enter into royalty or licensing agreements with the third
parties claiming infringement. These royalty or licensing agreements,
if available, may not have terms acceptable to the Company. Any
potential intellectual property litigation could force the Company to
do one or more of the following:

■ pay damages to the party claiming infringement;

■ stop licensing, or providing services that use, the challenged
intellectual property;

■ obtain a license from the owner of the infringed intellectual property
to sell or use the relevant technology, which license may not be
available on reasonable terms; or

■ redesign the challenged technology, which could be time-consuming
and costly.

If the Company were forced to take any of these actions, the Company’s
business could be materially adversely affected.

Future litigation proceedings may materially adversely affect 
the Company.
The Company cannot assure that future litigation matters will not have
a material adverse effect on the Company. Any future litigation may
result in injunctions against future product sales and substantial un-
anticipated legal costs and divert the efforts of management personnel,
any and all of which could materially adversely affect the Company.

Errors or defects in the Company’s products and services could
expose us to liability and harm the Company’s reputation.
The Company’s customers use the Company’s products and services in
designing and developing products that involve a high degree of tech-
nological complexity and have unique specifications. Because of the
complexity of the systems and products with which the Company
works, some of the Company’s products and designs can be adequately
tested only when put to full use in the marketplace. As a result, the
Company’s customers or their end users may discover errors or defects
in the Company’s software or the systems we design, or the products
or systems incorporating the Company’s designs and intellectual prop-
erty may not operate as expected. Errors or defects could result in:

■ loss of current customers and loss of, or delay in, revenue and loss of
market share;

■ failure to attract new customers or achieve market acceptance;

■ diversion of development resources to resolve the problems resulting
from errors or defects;

■ increased service costs; and

■ liability for damages.

The Company may acquire other companies and may not
successfully integrate them or the companies the Company 
has recently acquired.
The Company has acquired numerous businesses before and may
acquire other businesses in the future. While the Company expects to

28

ITEM 7.

Mentor Graphics



carefully analyze all potential transactions before committing to them,
the Company cannot assure that any transaction that is completed will
result in long-term benefits to the Company or the Company’s share-
holders or that the Company’s management will be able to manage the
acquired businesses effectively. In addition, growth through acquisi-
tion involves a number of risks. If any of the following events occurs
after the Company acquires another business, it could materially
adversely affect the Company:

■ difficulties in combining previously separate businesses into a 
single unit;

■ the substantial diversion of management’s attention from day-to-day
business when evaluating and negotiating acquisition transactions and
then integrating the acquired business;

■ the discovery after the acquisition has been completed of liabilities
assumed with the acquired business;

■ the failure to realize anticipated benefits, such as cost savings and
revenue enhancements;

■ the failure to retain key personnel of the acquired business;

■ difficulties related to assimilating the products of an acquired
business in, for example, distribution, engineering and customer
support areas;

■ unanticipated costs;

■ adverse effects on existing relationships with suppliers and
customers; and

■ failure to understand and compete effectively in markets in which 
the Company has limited previous experience.

Acquired businesses may not perform as projected which could result
in impairment of acquisition-related intangible assets. Additional
challenges include integration of sales channels, training and educa-
tion of the sales force for new product offerings, integration of product
development efforts, integration of systems of internal controls and
integration of information systems. Accordingly, in any acquisition
there will be uncertainty as to the achievement and timing of projected
synergies, cost savings and sales levels for acquired products. All of
these factors can impair the Company’s ability to forecast, meet
revenue and earnings targets and manage effectively the business for
long-term growth. The Company cannot assure that it can effectively
meet these challenges.

The Company’s failure to attract and retain key employees 
may harm the Company.
The Company depends on the efforts and abilities of the Company’s
senior management, the Company’s research and development staff
and a number of other key management, sales, support, technical and
services personnel. Competition for experienced, high-quality per-
sonnel is intense, and the Company cannot assure that it can continue
to recruit and retain such personnel. The failure by the Company to
hire and retain such personnel would impair the Company’s ability to
develop new products and manage the Company’s business effectively.

Terrorist attacks, such as the attacks that occurred on September
11, 2001, and other acts of violence or war may materially
adversely affect the markets on which the Company’s securities
trade, the markets in which the Company operates, the
Company’s operations and the Company’s profitability.
Terrorist attacks may negatively affect the Company’s operations and
investment in the Company’s business. These attacks or armed
conflicts may directly impact the Company’s physical facilities or
those of the Company’s suppliers or customers. Furthermore, these
attacks may make travel and the transportation of the Company’s
products more difficult and more expensive and ultimately affect the
Company’s sales.

Any armed conflict entered into by the United States could have an
impact on the Company’s sales and the Company’s ability to deliver
products to the Company’s customers. Political and economic
instability in some regions of the world may also result from an armed
conflict and could negatively impact the Company’s business. The
consequences of any armed conflict is unpredictable, and the Com-
pany may not be able to foresee events that could have an adverse
effect on the Company’s business.

More generally, any of these events could cause consumer confidence
and spending to decrease or result in increased volatility in the United
States and worldwide financial markets and economy. They also could
result in or exacerbate economic recession in the United States or
abroad. Any of these occurrences could have a significant impact on
the Company’s operating results, revenues and costs and may result in
volatility of the market price for the Company’s securities.

The Company’s articles of incorporation, Oregon law and the
Company’s shareholder rights plan may have anti-takeover effects.
The Company’s board of directors has the authority, without action by
the shareholders, to designate and issue up to 1,200,000 shares of
incentive stock in one or more series and to designate the rights,
preferences and privileges of each series without any further vote or
action by the shareholders. Additionally, the Oregon Control Share Act
and the Business Combination Act limit the ability of parties who
acquire a significant amount of voting stock to exercise control over
the Company. These provisions may have the effect of lengthening the
time required for a person to acquire control of the Company through
a proxy contest or the election of a majority of the board of directors.
In February 1999, the Company adopted a shareholder rights plan which
has the effect of making it more difficult for a person to acquire con-
trol of the Company in a transaction not approved by the Company’s
board of directors. The potential issuance of incentive stock, the
provisions of the Oregon Control Share Act and the Business Com-
bination Act and the Company’s shareholder rights plan may have the
effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of the
Company, may discourage bids for the Company’s common stock at a
premium over the market price of the Company’s common stock and
may adversely affect the market price of, and the voting and other
rights of the holders of, the Company’s common stock.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk
All numerical references in thousands, except rate data

INTEREST RATE RISK
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through its
investment portfolio, short-term borrowings and long-term notes
payable. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments
for speculative or trading purposes.

The Company places its investments in instruments that meet high
credit quality standards, as specified in the Company’s investment
policy. The policy also limits the amount of credit exposure to any one
issuer and type of instrument. The Company does not expect any
material loss with respect to its investment portfolio.

The table below presents the carrying value and related weighted-
average fixed interest rates for the Company’s investment portfolio.
The carrying value approximates fair value at December 31, 2002. In
accordance with the Company’s investment policy, all investments
mature in twelve months or less.

In thousands, except interest rates Carrying Average Fixed
Principal (notional) amounts in United States dollars: Value Interest Rate

Cash equivalents – fixed rate $   11,427 1.90%
Short-term investments – fixed rate 3,857 2.09%________

Total fixed rate interest bearing instruments $   15,284 1.95%________________

The Company had convertible subordinated notes of $172,500
outstanding with a fixed interest rate of 6 7/8% at December 31, 2002.
For fixed rate debt, interest rate changes affect the fair value of the
notes but do not affect earnings or cash flow.

On January 10, 2001, the Company entered into a syndicated, senior,
unsecured credit facility that allows the Company to borrow up to
$100,000. This facility is a three-year revolving credit facility, which
terminates on January 10, 2004. Under this facility, the Company has
the option to pay interest based on LIBOR plus a spread of between
0.50% and 1.75% or prime plus a spread of between 0% and 0.50%,
based on a pricing grid tied to a financial covenant. As a result, the
Company’s interest expense associated with borrowings under this
credit facility will vary with market interest rates. In addition,
commitment fees are payable on the unused portion of the credit
facility at rates between 0.20% and 0.425% based on a pricing grid
tied to a financial covenant. A utilization fee of 0.125% is payable on
amounts borrowed under the credit facility when borrowings exceed
33% of the total facility amount. The weighted average interest rate for
2002 was 3.71%. The facility contains certain financial and other
covenants, including financial covenants requiring the maintenance of
specified liquidity ratios, leverage ratios and minimum tangible net
worth. The Company had short-term borrowings against the credit
facility of $10,000 at December 31, 2002.

The Company had other long-term notes payable of $5,185 and short-
term borrowings, including borrowings under the credit facility, of
$17,670 outstanding at December 31, 2002 with variable rates based
on market indexes. For variable rate debt, interest rate changes
generally do not affect the fair market value, but do affect future
earnings or cash flow. If the interest rates on the variable rate

borrowings were to increase or decrease by 1% for the year and the
level of borrowings outstanding remained constant, annual interest
expense would increase or decrease by approximately $229.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
The Company transacts business in various foreign currencies and has
established a foreign currency hedging program to hedge certain foreign
currency forecasted transactions and exposures from existing assets
and liabilities. Derivative instruments held by the Company consist of
foreign currency forward and option contracts. The Company enters
into contracts with counterparties who are major financial institutions
and believes the risk related to default is remote. The Company does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

The Company enters into foreign currency option contracts for
forecasted sales and commission transactions between its foreign
subsidiaries. These instruments provide the Company the right to
sell/purchase foreign currencies to/from third parties at future dates
with fixed exchange rates. As of December 31, 2002, the Company
had options outstanding to sell Japanese yen with contract values
totaling approximately $37,815 at a weighted average contract rate of
125.61 and has options outstanding to buy the Euro with contract
values totaling $20,800 at a weighted average contract rate of 1.04.

The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to protect
against currency exchange risk associated with expected future cash
flows and existing assets and liabilities. The Company’s practice is to
hedge a majority of its existing material foreign currency transaction
exposures.

From time to time, the Company enters into foreign currency forward
contracts to offset the translation and economic exposure on a portion
of the Company’s net investment in its Japanese subsidiary. Differences
between the contracted currency rate and the currency rate at each
balance sheet date will impact accumulated translation adjustment
which is a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in
the stockholders’ equity section of the consolidated balance sheet. The
result is a partial offset of the effect of Japanese currency changes on
stockholders’ equity during the contract term. As of December 31,
2002, the Company had no forward contracts outstanding to protect
the net investment in its Japanese subsidiary.

The table provides information as of December 31, 2002 about the
Company’s foreign currency forward contracts. The information
provided is in United States dollar equivalent amounts. The table
presents the notional amounts, at contract exchange rates, and the
weighted average contractual foreign currency exchange rates. These
forward contracts mature in January 2003.

Notional Weighted Average
Amount Contract Rate

Forward Contracts:
Japanese yen $   14,447 $    119.80
Euro 14,242 1.02
Swedish krona 2,850 8.86
British pound sterling 2,501 1.60
Korean won 1,644 1,206.44
Danish krona 973 7.26
Other 2,898 –________

Total $   39,555________________
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
In thousands, except per share data
Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Revenues:
System and software $   321,994 $   333,215 $   343,569
Service and support 274,185 267,156 246,266_________ _________ _________

Total revenues 596,179 600,371 589,835_________ _________ _________
Cost of revenues:

System and software 27,665 23,485 28,216
Service and support 82,831 87,936 87,707
Amortization of purchased technology 6,688 3,252 2,765_________ _________ _________

Total cost of revenues 117,184 114,673 118,688_________ _________ _________
Gross margin 478,995 485,698 471,147_________ _________ _________

Operating expenses:
Research and development 164,228 137,799 125,952
Marketing and selling 218,963 198,639 197,733
General and administration 72,491 64,954 66,707
Amortization of intangible assets 2,255 7,520 2,965
Special charges 6,184 46,343 2,611
Merger and acquisition related charges 28,700 – 11,590_________ _________ _________

Total operating expenses 492,821 455,255 407,558_________ _________ _________
Operating income (loss) (13,826) 30,443 63,589

Other income, net 6,905 10,932 9,310
Interest expense (11,696) (2,504) (2,403)_________ _________ _________

Income (loss) before income taxes (18,617) 38,871 70,496
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (4,303) 7,767 15,509_________ _________ _________

Net income (loss) $   (14,314) $     31,104 $     54,987_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $         (.22) $         0.48 $         0.86_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Diluted $         (.22) $         0.46 $         0.81_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
Basic 65,766 64,436 64,125_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Diluted 65,766 67,681 67,509_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
In thousands
As of December 31, 2002 2001

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $     34,969 $   124,029
Short-term investments 3,857 23,147
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $3,852 in 2002 and $3,273 in 2001 159,657 139,391

Other receivables 8,987 9,202
Inventory, net 4,141 5,009
Prepaid expenses and other 11,756 11,031
Deferred income taxes 16,827 15,118_________ _________

Total current assets 240,194 326,927
Property, plant and equipment, net 90,259 82,247
Term receivables, long-term 78,431 58,922
Goodwill 300,783 7,287
Intangible assets, net 41,388 4,597
Other assets, net 53,793 41,241_________ _________

Total assets $   804,848 $   521,221_________ __________________ _________
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings $     17,670 $              –
Accounts payable 17,110 8,581
Income taxes payable 40,784 39,465
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 51,250 47,922
Accrued liabilities 45,233 24,752
Deferred revenue 72,902 56,914_________ _________

Total current liabilities 244,949 177,634
Notes payable 177,685 5,100
Other long-term liabilities 19,275 9,366_________ _________

Total liabilities 441,909 192,100_________ _________
Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Minority interest 3,219 2,913
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, no par value, authorized 100,000 shares; 66,629 and
64,706 issued and outstanding for 2002 and 2001, respectively 297,995 245,672

Incentive stock, no par value, authorized 1,200 shares; none issued – –
Deferred compensation (4,761) –
Retained earnings 49,867 64,288
Accumulated other comprehensive income 16,619 16,248_________ _________

Total stockholders’ equity 359,720 326,208_________ _________
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $   804,848 $   521,221_________ __________________ _________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
In thousands
Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Operating Cash Flows:
Net income (loss) $  (14,314) $     31,104 $     54,987
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment 21,426 17,724 19,447
Amortization 16,385 10,770 5,731
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment – – (3,118)
Deferred income taxes (3,873) (12,670) 777
Changes in other long-term liabilities and minority interest (7,703) 7,482 595
Tax benefit of employee stock option plans 20,831 1,697 1,154
Write-down of assets 28,700 35,922 12,934
Gain on sale of investments (2,438) (933) –

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquired businesses:
Trade accounts receivable 2,272 15,576 (34,321)
Prepaid expenses and other (20,238) 1,517 (2,696)
Term receivables, long-term (16,361) (25,802) (2,777)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (14,050) (23,274) 9,563
Income taxes payable (4,662) 9,509 8,222
Deferred revenue (10,491) (10,945) 20,592_________ _________ _________

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (4,516) 57,677 91,090_________ _________ _________
Investing Cash Flows:

Proceeds from the sales and maturities of short-term investments 33,659 71,778 46,186
Purchases of short-term investments (7,902) (64,450) (41,397)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (20,409) (18,690) (19,019)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment – – 4,725
Proceeds from sale of investments 2,438 933 –
Acquisitions of businesses and equity interests (288,383) (6,216) (43,070)_________ _________ _________

Net cash used in investing activities (280,597) (16,645) (52,575)_________ _________ _________
Financing Cash Flows:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 17,663 18,623 28,866
Repurchase of common stock – (39,658) (52,488)
Repurchase of warrant – (2,000) –
Net increase in short-term borrowings 13,599 – –
Note issuance costs (5,518) – –
Proceeds from long-term notes payable 177,831 – –
Repayments of long-term notes payable (7,860) (1,000) –_________ _________ _________

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 195,715 (24,035) (23,622)_________ _________ _________
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 338 (2,080) (1,418)_________ _________ _________
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (89,060) 14,917 13,475
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 124,029 109,112 95,637_________ _________ _________
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $     34,969 $   124,029 $   109,112_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Retained Other Total

Common Stock Deferred Earnings Comprehensive Comprehensive Stockholders’
In thousands Shares Amount Compensation (Deficit) Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Equity

Balance at December 31, 1999 64,338 $   289,478 $             – $  (20,362) $     19,664 $   288,780
Net income – – – 54,987 – $    54,987 54,987

Foreign currency translation adjustment, before 
tax benefit of $1,536 – – – – (5,445) (5,445) (5,445)

Unrealized gain on investments reported 
at fair value, before tax expense of $440 – – – – 1,100 1,100 1,100_________

Comprehensive income – – – – – $    50,642 –__________________
Stock issued under stock option and stock 
purchase plans 3,265 28,866 – – – 28,866

Tax benefit associated with the exercise of 
stock options – 1,154 – – – 1,154

Repurchase of common stock (2,979) (52,488) – – – (52,488)
Dividends to minority owners – – – (417) – (417)_______ _________ _________ _________ _________ _________
Balance at December 31, 2000 64,624 267,010 – 34,208 15,319 316,537
Net income – – – 31,104 – $    31,104 31,104

Foreign currency translation adjustment, 
before tax benefit of $697 – – – – (3,483) (3,483) (3,483)

Unrealized gain on investments reported at fair value – – – – 2,118 2,118 2,118
Reclassification adjustment for investment 
gains included in net income reported at fair value – – – – (933) (933) (933)

Unrealized gain on derivatives – – – – 3,227 3,227 3,227_________
Comprehensive income – – – – – $    32,033 –__________________
Stock issued under stock option and stock 
purchase plans 1,703 18,623 – – – 18,623

Tax benefit associated with the exercise 
of stock options – 1,697 – – – 1,697

Repurchase of common stock (1,621) (39,658) – – – (39,658)
Repurchase of warrant – (2,000) – – – (2,000)
Dividends to minority owners – – – (1,024) – (1,024)_______ _________ _________ _________ _________ _________
Balance at December 31, 2001 64,706 245,672 – 64,288 16,248 326,208
Net loss – – – (14,314) – $  (14,314) (14,314)

Foreign currency translation adjustment, 
after tax of $1,374 – – – – 6,870 6,870 6,870

Unrealized gain on investments reported at fair value – – – – 153 153 153
Reclassification adjustment for investment 
gains included in net loss reported at fair value – – – – (2,438) (2,438) (2,438)

Minimum pension liability, before tax benefit of $163 – – – – (816) (816) (816)
Unrealized losses on derivatives – – – – (3,398) (3,398) (3,398)_________

Comprehensive loss – – – – – $   (13,943) –__________________
Stock options and warrant issued in connection 
with acquisitions – 14,479 – – – 14,479

Deferred compensation for unvested stock options 
issued in connection with acquisitions – – (6,460) – – (6,460)

Amortization of deferred compensation – – 1,049 – – 1,049
Forfeitures of unvested stock options issued in 
connection with acquisitions – (650) 650 – – –

Stock issued under stock option and stock 
purchase plans 1,923 17,663 – – – 17,663

Tax benefit associated with the exercise of 
stock options – 20,831 – – – 20,831

Dividends to minority owners – – – (107) – (107)_______ _________ _________ _________ _________ _________
Balance at December 31, 2002 66,629 $   297,995 $   (4,761) $     49,867 $     16,619 $   359,720_______ _________ _________ _________ _________ ________________ _________ _________ _________ _________ _________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
All numerical references in thousands, except percentages, per share data 
and number of employees

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The Company is a supplier of EDA systems — advanced computer
software, emulation systems and intellectual property designs and
databases used to automate the design, analysis and testing of elec-
tronic hardware and embedded systems software in electronic systems
and components. The Company markets its products and services
worldwide, primarily to large companies in the communications,
computer, consumer electronics, semiconductor, aerospace, network-
ing, multimedia and transportation industries. The Company licenses
its products through its direct sales force and an affiliated channel of
distributors and sales representatives. The Company was incorporated
in Oregon in 1981 and its common stock is traded on the Nasdaq
National Market under the symbol “MENT”. In addition to its cor-
porate offices in Wilsonville, Oregon, the Company has sales, support,
software development and professional service offices worldwide.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its wholly owned and majority-owned sub-
sidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated in consolidation.

The Company does not have off-balance sheet arrangements, financ-
ings or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other
persons, also known as special purpose entities. In the ordinary course
of business, the Company leases certain real properties, primarily field
office facilities, and equipment, as described in Note 17.

Foreign Currency Translation
Local currencies are the functional currencies for the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries except for Ireland and Singapore where the United
States dollar is used as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities of
foreign operations, excluding Ireland and Singapore, are translated to
United States dollars at current rates of exchange, and revenues and
expenses are translated using weighted average rates. Gains and losses
from foreign currency translation are included as a separate component
of stockholders’ equity. The accounting records for the Company’s
subsidiaries in Ireland and Singapore are maintained in United States
dollars which is also the entities’ functional currency and accordingly
no translation is necessary. Foreign currency transaction gains and
losses are included as a component of other income and expense.

Use of Estimates
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America require management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and contingencies at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments
with original maturities of ninety days or less. Cash equivalents totaled
$11,427 and $96,275 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Short-Term and Long-Term Investments
The Company accounts for short-term and long-term investments in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities”. Short-term investments include certificates of deposit,
commercial paper and other highly liquid investments with original
maturities in excess of 90 days and less than one year. Long-term in-
vestments include investments with original maturities in excess of one
year and equity securities. The Company determines the appropriate
classification of its investments at the time of purchase. Debt securi-
ties are classified as held to maturity when the Company has the posi-
tive intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity. Held to maturity
securities are stated at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and
discounts to maturity. Marketable securities not classified as held to
maturity are classified as available for sale. Available for sale
securities are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices.
Unrealized gains and losses are reported, net of tax, in stockholders’
equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments and 
Concentrations of Credit Risk
The Company places its cash equivalents and short-term investments
with major banks and financial institutions. The Company’s invest-
ment policy limits its credit exposure to any one financial institution.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are
limited due to the large number of customers comprising the
Company’s customer base and their dispersion across different
businesses and geographic areas.

The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, short-term investments,
trade accounts receivable, term receivables, short-term borrowings,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value
because of the short-term nature of these instruments or as amounts
have been appropriately discounted. Available for sale securities and
foreign exchange forward and option contracts are recorded based on
quoted market prices. The fair value of long-term notes payable was
$145,997 and $5,100, as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
as compared to carrying values of $177,685 and $5,100 at December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The fair value of long-term notes
payable was based on the quoted market price or based on rates
available to the Company for instruments with similar terms and
maturities. The Company does not believe it is exposed to any
significant credit risk or market risk on its financial instruments.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for
additions to property, plant and equipment are capitalized. Maintenance
and repairs which do not improve or extend the life of the respective
asset are expensed as incurred. Depreciation of buildings and land
improvements is computed on a straight-line basis over lives of forty
and twenty years, respectively. Depreciation of computer equipment
and furniture is computed principally on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three to five years.
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the lesser of the term of the lease or estimated useful lives of the
improvements, generally three to ten years.

Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assets
Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate purchase price over
the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets acquired from the
Company’s business combinations. Other intangible assets primarily
include purchased technology, trademarks and customer relationships
acquired in business combinations. The Company adopted SFAS No.
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” and SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
on January 1, 2002. Under SFAS No. 142, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination must be recorded separately from goodwill
if they arise from contractual or other legal rights or are separable
from the acquired entity and can be sold, transferred, licensed, rented
or exchanged, regardless of acquirer’s intent to do so. Goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an impairment
indicator using a fair value approach. All acquired goodwill must be
assigned to reporting units for purposes of impairment testing and
segment reporting. While the Company’s reportable segments are
based on geographic area, goodwill cannot be evaluated in that
manner as the majority of acquired products are sold in all geographic
areas. Therefore, the Company assigned goodwill resulting from the
acquisitions of ATI, IKOS and Innoveda to an enterprise-level
reporting unit. In addition, the Company assigned all goodwill as of
January 1, 2002 to an enterprise-level reporting unit. Other intangible
assets continue to be amortized over their estimated lives. In-process
research and development continues to be written-off immediately.

Under SFAS No. 144, the Company continues to periodically review
long-lived assets, including intangible assets with definite lives, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability
of an asset is determined by comparing its carrying amount, including
any associated intangible assets, to the forecasted undiscounted net
cash flows of the operation to which the asset relates. If the operation
is determined to be unable to recover the carrying amount of its assets,
then intangible assets are written down first, followed by the other
long-lived assets of the operation, to fair value. Fair value is determined
based on discounted cash flows or appraised values, depending upon
the nature of the assets. In the event that, in the future, it is determined

that the Company’s intangible assets have been impaired, an adjust-
ment would be made that would result in a charge for the write-down,
in the period that determination was made.

As required by SFAS No. 142, the Company completed the transi-
tional goodwill impairment test as of June 30, 2002 and the annual
goodwill impairment test as of December 31, 2002. There was no
impairment as of either date. The Company recognized impairment in
value of certain goodwill and purchased technology which resulted in
associated write-downs of $23,665 and $8,077 in 2001 and $522 and
$822 in 2000, respectively. The Company also reviewed the useful
lives of its identifiable intangible assets and determined that the
estimated lives as of December 31, 2002 are appropriate.

Purchased technology and other intangible asset costs are amortized
over a three to five year period to system and software cost of
revenues and operating expenses, respectively. Under SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangibles”, effective on January 1, 2002,
amortization of goodwill no longer occurs. Total goodwill, purchased
technology and other intangible asset amortization expenses were
$8,943, $10,770, and $5,730 for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

The following table presents the impact of SFAS No. 142 on net
income (loss) and net income (loss) per share had the standard been 
in effect for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss), as reported $  (14,314) $     31,104 $     54,987
Goodwill amortization, net of tax – 6,016 2,372_________ _________ _________
Adjusted net income (loss) $   (14,314) $     37,120 $     57,359_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Basic net income (loss) per share – 
as reported $      (0.22) $         0.48 $         0.86_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Basic net income (loss) per share – 
as adjusted $      (0.22) $         0.58 $         0.89_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Diluted net income (loss) per share – 
as reported $      (0.22) $         0.46 $         0.81_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Diluted net income (loss) per share – 
as adjusted $      (0.22) $         0.55 $         0.85_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

As of December 31, 2002, the carrying value of goodwill was $300,783,
purchased technology was $35,466 and other intangible assets was
$1,842, net of accumulated amortization of $12,347, $14,244 and
$1,207, respectively. The carrying value of non-amortizable other
intangible assets was $4,080.

As of December 31, 2001, the carrying value of goodwill was $7,287
and purchased technology was $4,597, net of accumulated amorti-
zation of $12,347 and $7,556, respectively. The Company did not have
any other intangible assets or non-amortizable intangible assets at
December 31, 2001.

The Company estimates the aggregate amortization expense related 
to purchased technology and other intangible assets will be $9,612,
$9,128, $7,556, $7,348 and $2,270 for each of the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.
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Income Taxes
The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for
income taxes. Under the asset and liability method, deferred income
taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
temporary differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts and tax balances of existing assets and liabilities. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible temporary differences, net operating loss
carryforwards and credit carryforwards if it is more likely than not
that the tax benefits will be realized. For deferred tax assets that
cannot be recognized under the more likely than not test, the Company
has established a valuation allowance. In the event the Company was
to determine that it would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in
the future in excess of its net recorded amount, an adjustment to the
deferred tax asset would increase either income or contributed capital
in the period such determination was made. Also, if the Company was
to determine that it would not be able to realize all or part of its net
deferred tax asset in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset
would be charged to either income or contributed capital in the period
such determination was made.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company transacts business in various foreign currencies and has
established a foreign currency hedging program to hedge certain
foreign currency forecasted transactions and exposures from existing
assets and liabilities. Derivative instruments held by the Company
consist of foreign currency forward and option contracts. The Com-
pany enters into contracts with counterparties who are major financial
institutions and believes the risk related to default is remote. Foreign
currency transactions are executed in exchange-traded or over-the-
counter markets for which quoted prices exist. Contracts generally
have maturities that do not exceed one year. The Company does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends
upon whether it has been designated in a hedging relationship and on
the type of hedging relationship. To qualify for designation in a hedging
relationship, specific criteria must be met and the appropriate documen-
tation maintained. Hedging relationships, if designated, are established
pursuant to the Company’s risk management policy and are initially and
regularly evaluated to determine whether they are expected to be, and
have been, highly effective hedges. If a derivative ceases to be a highly
effective hedge, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively, and
future changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognized in earn-
ings each period. Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designat-
ed in a hedging relationship are recognized in earnings each period.
For derivatives designated as a hedge of a forecasted transaction (cash
flow hedge), the effective portion of the change in fair value of the
derivative is reported in accumulated other comprehensive income and
reclassified into earnings in the period in which the forecasted trans-
action occurs. Amounts excluded from the effectiveness calculation

and any ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the derivative
are recognized currently in earnings. Gains or losses deferred in accu-
mulated other comprehensive income associated with terminated
derivatives and derivatives that cease to be highly effective remain in
accumulated other comprehensive income until the forecasted trans-
action occurs. Forecasted transactions designated as the hedged item
in a cash flow hedge are regularly evaluated to assess whether they
continue to be probable of occurring. If the forecasted transaction is
no longer probable of occurring, any gain or loss deferred in accumu-
lated other comprehensive income is recognized in earnings currently.

The Company had $98,170 and $149,959 of notional value foreign
currency forward and option contracts outstanding at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. Notional amounts do not quantify risk or
represent assets or liabilities of the Company, but are used in the
calculation of cash settlements under the contracts. The fair value of
foreign currency forward and option contracts was $1,116 and $4,349
at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Revenue Recognition
The Company derives system and software revenue from the sale of
licenses of software products and emulation hardware systems. The
Company derives service and support revenue from annual support
contracts and professional services, which includes consulting
services, training services, custom design services and other services.

For the sale of licenses of software products and related service and
support, the Company recognizes revenue in accordance with
Statement of Position (SOP) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition”,
as amended by SOP 98-9, “Modification of SOP 97-2, Software
Revenue Recognition, With Respect to Certain Transactions”.
Revenue from perpetual license arrangements is recognized upon
shipment, provided persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, fees
are fixed or determinable and collection is probable. Product revenue
from fixed-term license installment agreements, which are with the
Company’s top-rated customers, are recognized upon shipment and
start of the license term, provided all other revenue recognition criteria
have been met. The Company uses fixed-term license installment
agreements as a standard business practice and has a history of
successfully collecting under the original payment terms without
making concessions on payments, products or services. Revenue from
subscription-type term license agreements, which typically include
rights to future software products, is deferred and recognized ratably
over the term of the subscription period.

The Company uses the residual method to recognize revenue when a
license agreement includes one or more elements to be delivered at a
future date if evidence of the fair value of all undelivered elements
exists. If an undelivered element of the arrangement exists under the
license arrangement, revenue is deferred based on vendor-specific
objective evidence of the fair value of the undelivered element, as
established by the price charged when such element is sold separately.
If vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value does not exist for all
undelivered elements, all revenue is deferred until sufficient evidence
exists or all elements have been delivered.
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Revenue from annual maintenance and support arrangements is deferred
and recognized ratably over the term of the contract. Revenue from
consulting and training is recognized when the services are performed.

For the sale of emulation hardware systems and related service and
support, the Company recognizes revenue in accordance with SEC
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (SAB 101), “Revenue Recognition
in Financial Statements”. Revenue is recognized when the title and
risk of loss have passed to the customer, there is persuasive evidence
of an arrangement, delivery has occurred or services have been
rendered, the sales price is determinable and collection is probable.
When the terms of sale include customer acceptance provisions and
compliance with those provisions cannot be demonstrated until
customer use, revenue is recognized upon acceptance. The Company
accrues related warranty costs at the time of sale. A limited warranty
is provided on emulation hardware systems generally for a period of
ninety days. Service and maintenance revenues are recognized over
the service period.

Software Development Costs
The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance
with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to
be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed.” Software development costs
are capitalized beginning when a product’s technological feasibility
has been established by completion of a working model of the product
and ending when a product is available for general release to customers.
The period between the achievement of technological feasibility and
the general release of the Company’s products has been of short
duration. As a result, such capitalizable software development costs
were insignificant and have been charged to research and development
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Advertising Costs
The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Advertising
expense was approximately $7,200, $5,400 and $5,300 for 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively, and is included in marketing and selling
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share
Basic net income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted
average number of common shares and dilutive potential common
shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive common shares consist
of employee stock options and warrants using the treasury stock
method and common shares issued assuming conversion of the
convertible subordinated notes, if dilutive.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
The Company accounts for employee stock-based compensation in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issues to Employees” and related interpretations.
If the Company had accounted for its stock-based compensation plans
in accordance with the SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income (loss)
and net income (loss) per share would approximate the pro forma
disclosures below:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss), as reported $  (14,314) $     31,104 $     54,987
Deduct: Total stock-based employee 
compensation expense determined 
under fair value based method, for 
all awards not previously included in 
net income, net of related tax benefit (17,270) (14,227) (10,894)_________ _________ _________

Pro forma net income (loss) $   (31,584) $     16,877 $     44,093_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Basic net income (loss) per share –
as reported $      (0.22) $         0.48 $         0.86

Basic net income (loss) per share – 
pro forma $      (0.48) $         0.26 $         0.69

Diluted net income (loss) per share – 
as reported $      (0.22) $         0.46 $         0.81

Diluted net income (loss) per share – 
pro forma $      (0.48) $         0.25 $         0.65

Transfer of Financial Assets
The Company finances certain software license and service agree-
ments with customers through the sale, assignment and transfer of the
future payments under those agreements to financing institutions on a
non-recourse basis. The Company records such transfers as sales of
the related accounts receivable when it is considered to have sur-
rendered control of such receivables under the provisions of SFAS No.
140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities.”

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made in the accompanying con-
solidated financial statements for 2000 and 2001 to conform with the
2002 presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.”
This statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets
and the associated asset retirement costs. The Company is required to
implement SFAS No. 143 on January 1, 2003. The Company does not
expect this statement to have a material impact on its consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”. This statement nullifies
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3 (EITF 94-3), “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other
Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
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Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost
associated with an exit or disposal activity is recognized when the
liability is incurred. Under EITF 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as
defined in EITF 94-3 was recognized at the date of an entity’s
commitment to an exit plan. The provisions of SFAS No. 146 are
effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December
31, 2002. SFAS No. 146 will be adopted on a prospective basis and
therefore did not have an impact as of December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force reached a
consensus on Issue No. 00-21 (EITF 00-21), “Revenue Arrangements
with Multiple Deliverables”. EITF 00-21 addresses certain aspects of
the accounting by a vendor for arrangements under which the vendor
will perform multiple revenue generating activities. EITF 00-21 will
be effective for interim periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The
Company does not expect this issue to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No.
45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”.
FIN No. 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, a guarantor
must recognize a liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed
under a guarantee. FIN No. 45 also requires additional disclosures by
a guarantor in its financial statements about the obligations associated
with guarantees issued. The initial recognition and measurement
provisions of FIN No. 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The dis-
closure requirements of FIN No. 45 are effective for financial
statements issued after December 15, 2002. The Company does not
expect this interpretation to have a material impact on its consolidated
financial position and results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, Transition and Disclosure”. SFAS No.
148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change
to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure re-
quirements of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compen-
sation”, to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported
results. As allowed under SFAS No. 148, the Company will continue
to account for stock-based compensation according to APB Opinion
No. 25. The Company adopted the disclosure provisions of SFAS No.
148 effective December 31, 2002.

3. MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS
In February 2002, the Company acquired Accelerated Technology, Inc.
(ATI), a provider of embedded software based in Mobile, Alabama.
The acquisition was an investment aimed at expanding the Company’s
product offering and driving revenue growth which supported the
premium paid over the fair market value of the individual assets. 
The total purchase price including acquisition costs was $23,359,
which included the fair value of a warrant issued of $361. The excess
of liabilities assumed over tangible assets acquired was $1,808. 

The cost of the acquisition was allocated on the basis of the estimated
fair value of assets and liabilities assumed. The purchase accounting
allocations resulted in a charge for in-process research and
development (R&D) of $4,000, goodwill of $16,739, technology of
$6,500, other identified intangible assets of $880, net of related
deferred tax liability of $2,952. The technology will be amortized to
cost of goods sold over five years. Of the $880 other identified
intangible assets, $480 was determined to have an indefinite life at the
time of acquisition and is not being amortized. The Company will
continue to evaluate whether this asset’s useful life can be determined
and, if so, will amortize the asset accordingly. The remaining $400
will be amortized, primarily over five years, to operating expenses.

In March 2002, the Company acquired IKOS Systems, Inc. (IKOS), a
provider of electronic design automation tools for the verification of
integrated circuit designs. The acquisition was an investment aimed at
expanding the Company’s product offering and driving revenue growth
which supported the premium paid over the fair market value of the
individual assets. The total purchase price including acquisition costs
was $124,420, which included the fair value of options assumed
totaling $3,823. In addition, the Company recorded severance costs
related to IKOS employees of $4,203 and costs of vacating certain
leased facilities of IKOS of $11,344. These costs will result in cash
expenditures of $14,048, with the remainder being non-cash write-offs
of leasehold improvements. Severance costs affected 70 employees
across all employee groups. This reduction was due to the overlap of
employee skill sets as a result of the acquisition. The excess of
tangible assets acquired over liabilities assumed was $11,057. The cost
of the acquisition was allocated on the basis of the estimated fair value
of assets and liabilities assumed. The preliminary purchase accounting
allocations resulted in a charge for in-process R&D of $12,000,
goodwill of $105,873, technology of $16,900, deferred compensation
relating to assumed unvested employee stock options of $695, other
identified intangible assets of $800, net of related deferred tax liability
of $7,358. The technology will be amortized to cost of goods sold over
five years. Deferred compensation will be amortized over ten quarters
to operating expenses and other identified intangible assets will be
amortized over one year to operating expenses.

In May 2002, the Company acquired Innoveda, Inc. (Innoveda), a
worldwide leader in electronic design automation technology, software
and services for businesses in the consumer electronics, computer,
telecommunications, automotive and aerospace industries. The
acquisition was an investment aimed at expanding the Company’s
product offering and driving revenue growth which supported the
premium paid over the fair market value of the individual assets. The
total purchase price including acquisition costs was $182,059, which
included the fair value of options assumed totaling $10,295. In
addition, the Company recorded severance costs related to Innoveda
employees of $4,416 and costs of vacating certain leased facilities of
Innoveda of $4,871. All of these costs will result in cash expenditures.
Severance costs affected 106 employees across all employee groups.
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This reduction was due to the overlap of employee skill sets as a result
of the acquisition. The excess of liabilities assumed over tangible
assets acquired was $5,673. The cost of the acquisition was allocated
on the basis of the estimated fair value of assets and liabilities
assumed. The preliminary purchase accounting allocations resulted in
a charge for in-process R&D of $12,700, goodwill of $169,790,
technology of $13,000, deferred compensation relating to assumed
unvested employee stock options of $5,765 and other identified
intangible assets of $5,450, net of related deferred tax liability of
$9,686. The technology will be amortized to cost of goods sold over
five years. Deferred compensation will be amortized over three years
to operating expenses. Of the $5,450 other identified intangible assets,
$3,600 was determined to have an indefinite life at the time of
acquisition and is not being amortized. The Company will continue to
evaluate whether this asset’s useful life can be determined and, if so,
will amortize the asset accordingly. The remaining $1,850 will be
amortized primarily over three years to operating expenses.

Subsequent to the acquisitions in 2002, the Company reversed $650 of
unamortized deferred compensation to common stock as a result of
forfeitures of unvested stock options assumed in the acquisitions due
to attrition and workforce reduction.

The following pro forma information assumes the Innoveda and IKOS
acquisitions occurred as of the beginning of each period presented.
The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of what actually
would have occurred had the acquisitions been in effect for the periods
presented. In addition, they are not intended to be a projection of
future results that may be achieved from the combined operations. The
separate results of operations for ATI were not material compared to
the Company’s overall results of operations and accordingly pro-forma
information for ATI has been omitted.

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001

Revenue $ 623,830 $ 745,162
Net loss $ (23,635) $ (18,066)
Basic net loss per share $     (0.36) $     (0.28)
Diluted net loss per share $     (0.36) $     (0.28)

The Company excluded the IKOS break-up fee and charges for in-
process R&D from these pro forma results due to their non-recurring
nature.

In 2001, the Company recorded no merger and acquisition related
charges. In 2000, the Company completed five business combinations
which were accounted for as purchases. The Company purchased
Descon Informationsysteme GmbH & Co. in May 2000, Escalade
Corp. in May 2000, HSL Holdings Limited in October 2000,
Speedgate, Inc. in December 2000 and the ECAD division of CADIX
Incorporated in December 2000. The total purchase price including
acquisition expenses for all 2000 purchase acquisitions was $53,592.
The excess of liabilities assumed over tangible assets acquired totaled
$1,393. The purchase accounting allocations resulted in charges for in-
process R&D of $11,590, goodwill of $33,295 and technology of
$10,100. The results of operations are included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition forward.

The Company uses an independent third party valuation firm to
determine the value of the in-process R&D acquired in its business
acquisitions. The value assigned to in-process R&D for the charges
incurred in 2000 and 2002 related to research projects for which
technological feasibility had not been established. The value was
determined by estimating the net cash flows from the sale of products
resulting from the completion of such projects and discounting the net
cash flows back to their present value. The rate used to discount the
net cash flows was based on the weighted average cost of capital.
Other factors considered were the inherent uncertainties in future
revenue estimates from technology investments including the un-
certainty surrounding the successful development of the acquired in-
process technology, the useful life of the technology, the profitability
levels of the technology and the stage of completion of the technology.
The stage of completion of the products at the date of the acquisition
were estimated based on R&D costs that had been expended as of the
date of acquisition as compared to total R&D costs expected at
completion. The percentages derived from this calculation were then
applied to the net present value of future cash flows to determine the
in-process charge. The nature of the efforts to develop the in-process
technology into commercially viable products principally related to
the completion of all planning, designing, prototyping, verification
and testing activities that are necessary to establish that the product
can be produced to meet its design specification, including function,
features and technical performance requirements. The estimated net
cash flows from these products were based on estimates of related
revenues, cost of revenues, R&D costs, selling, general and admin-
istrative costs and income taxes. These estimates are subject to change,
given the uncertainties of the development process, and no assurance
can be given that deviations from these estimates will not occur or that
the Company will realize any anticipated benefits of the acquisition.
The risks associated with acquired R&D are considered high and no
assurance can be made that these products will generate any benefit or
meet market expectations.

4. SPECIAL CHARGES
Following is a summary of the major elements of the special charges:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Goodwill and purchased 
technology impairment $              – $     31,742 $       1,344

Excess leased facility costs (5,110) 10,514 –
Employee severance 12,023 3,365 707
Terminated acquisitions 135 – –
Other (864) 722 560_________ _________ _________

Special charges $       6,184 $     46,343 $       2,611_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

During 2002, the Company recorded special charges of $6,184. The
charges primarily consist of costs incurred for employee terminations,
partially offset by a net benefit from reduction of accrued excess
leased facility costs. Additionally, a $515 benefit for the reversal of
excess accruals related to acquisitions that occurred in prior years is
included in special charges.
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In addition to acquisition related terminations of 176, the Company
rebalanced the workforce by 332 employees during 2002. This reduc-
tion primarily impacted the sales organization, research and develop-
ment organization and, to a lesser extent, the consulting division.
Employee severance costs of $12,023 included severance benefits,
notice pay and outplacement services. Termination benefits were
communicated to the affected employees prior to year-end. The major-
ity of these costs will be expended in the first half of 2003. There have
been no significant modifications to the amount of these charges.

The Company recorded excess leased facility costs for leases of facil-
ities in North America and Europe in the fourth quarter of 2001 based
on the presumption that such facilities would be permanently aban-
doned. During 2002, the Company determined that a facility in North
America was to be re-occupied as a result of requirements following
recent acquisitions. At that time, the remaining accrual for $5,855 was
reversed. In addition, the Company reduced its accrual for lease ter-
mination fees by $777 as a result of changes in assumptions regarding
lease payments for an abandoned facility in Europe. In 2002, the Com-
pany also recorded $1,223 related to non-cancelable lease payments,
net of sublease income, and a write-off of assets and leasehold
improvements of $299 for leases of facilities in North America,
Europe and Japan that will be permanently abandoned in 2003. The
majority of the non-cancelable lease payments on these excess leased
facilities will be expended within the next twelve months.

During 2002, the Company recorded a benefit to special charges of
$2,066 as a result of a reversal of a hold-back liability recorded as a
part of the acquisition of the ECAD division of CADIX Incorporated
in 2000. CADIX Incorporated relinquished its right to the hold-back
amount in exchange for the Company’s withdrawal of its filing of
damage claims. In an unrelated matter, this benefit was partially offset
by the Company’s payment of $1,500 related to the settlement of
disputed royalties. These settlements resulted in a net benefit to
special charges of $566.

Accrued special charges are included in accrued liabilities and other
long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The following
table shows changes in accrued special charges during 2002:

Accrued Accrued
Special Special

Charges at Charges at
December 2002 2002 December

31, 2001 Charges1 Payments 31, 20022

Employee severance 
and related costs $       3,107 $     12,023 $    (7,213) $       7,917

Lease termination fees 
and other facility costs 9,300 (5,110) (1,037) 3,153

Other costs 214 (214) – –_________ _________ _________ _________
Total $     12,621 $       6,699 $     (8,250) $     11,070_________ _________ _________ __________________ _________ _________ _________

12002 charges do not include a $515 benefit for the reversal of excess accruals
related to acquisitions that occurred in prior years.
2Of the $11,070 total accrued special charges at December 31, 2002, $1,742
represents the long-term portion of accrued lease termination fees and other
facility costs. The remaining balance of $9,328 represents the short-term
portion of accrued special charges.

During 2001, the Company recorded special charges of $46,343. The
charges primarily consisted of impairment in value of certain goodwill
and purchased technology, an accrual for excess leased facility costs
and costs incurred for employee terminations.

The goodwill and purchased technology impairment charge was due to
performance of acquired businesses not meeting initial estimates. This
charge was determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted net
cash flows of the operations to which the intangible assets relate, to
the carrying amount including associated intangible assets of such
operation. The operations were determined to be unable to recover the
carrying amount of their assets, resulting in a write-down to fair value.
There have been no significant modifications to the amount of these
charges.

Excess leased facility costs consisted of non-cancelable lease payments
of $9,560 and write-off of leasehold improvements of $954 for leases
of four facilities in North America and Europe. These facilities were
permanently abandoned and costs are net of sublease income. Non-
cancelable lease payments on excess leased facilities should be
expended over 14 years, with the majority to be expended over 5 years.

The Company rebalanced the workforce by 79 employees in June and
December 2001. This reduction primarily impacted the sales organiza-
tion and to a lesser extent the consulting division. Employee severance
costs included severance benefits, notice pay and outplacement
services. Termination benefits were communicated to the affected
employees prior to year-end. The majority of these costs were
expended in 2001 and the remaining amount was primarily expended
in the first half of 2002. There have been no significant modifications
to the amount of these charges.

During 2000, the Company recorded special charges of $2,611. The
charges consist of impairment in value of certain goodwill and pur-
chased technology and costs for employee terminations due to the
acquisition of Escalade Corp. in May 2000. Substantially all of these
costs were expended in 2000 and the remaining amount was primarily
expended in the first half of 2001. There have been no significant
modifications to the amount of the charges.

5. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Account-
ing for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. SFAS No. 133
establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instru-
ments and hedging activities and requires the Company to recognize
these as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and measure
them at fair value. The Company had no transition adjustment upon
adoption of SFAS No. 133.

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures, exposures
are aggregated on a consolidated basis to take advantage of natural
offsets. For exposures that are not offset, the Company enters into
foreign currency forward and option contracts pursuant to its risk
management policy. The Company formally documents all relation-
ships between foreign currency contracts and hedged items as well as
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its risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking various
hedge transactions. All hedges designated as cash flow hedges are
linked to forecasted transactions and the Company assesses, both at
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the effectiveness of
the foreign exchange contracts in offsetting changes in the cash flows
of the hedged items. The effective portions of the net gains or losses on
foreign currency contracts are reported as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. Accumulated
other comprehensive income associated with hedges of forecasted
transactions is reclassified to the consolidated statement of operations
in the same period as the forecasted transaction occurs. The Company
discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined
that a foreign currency contract is not highly effective as a hedge
under the requirements of SFAS No. 133. Any gain or loss deferred
through that date remains in accumulated other comprehensive income
until the forecasted transaction occurs at which time it is reclassified
to the consolidated statement of operations. To the extent the trans-
action is no longer deemed probable of occurring, hedge accounting
treatment is discontinued prospectively and amounts deferred are
reclassified to other income or expense.

The fair value of foreign currency forward and option contracts,
recorded in other receivables in the consolidated balance sheet, was
$1,116 and $4,349 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The following provides a summary of activity in accumulated other
comprehensive income relating to the Company’s hedging program:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001

Beginning balance $      3,227 $              –
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (1,752) 2,314
Hedge ineffectiveness recognized in earnings 138 –
Net (gain) loss transferred to earnings (1,784) 913_________ _________

Net unrealized gain (loss) $       (171) $       3,227_________ __________________ _________

The remaining balance in accumulated other comprehensive income at
December 31, 2002 represents a net unrealized loss on foreign currency
contracts relating to hedges of forecasted revenues and commission
expenses expected to occur during 2003. These amounts will be
transferred to the consolidated statement of operations upon revenue
recognition and recording commission expense. The Company expects
substantially all of the balance in accumulated other comprehensive
income to be reclassified to the consolidated statement of operations
within the next year. The Company transferred $694 deferred gain and
$913 deferred loss to system and software revenues relating to foreign
currency contracts hedging revenues for the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The Company transferred $1,090 deferred
gain to marketing and selling expense relating to foreign currency
contracts hedging commission expenses for the year ended December
31, 2002. Due to lower than forecasted revenues, the Company
discontinued several cash flow hedges during 2002 which resulted in
the immediate recognition of $138 loss included in other income, net.

The Company enters into foreign currency contracts to offset the
earnings impact relating to the variability in exchange rates on certain
short-term monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-
functional currencies. These foreign exchange contracts are not
designated as hedges. Changes in the fair value of these contracts are
recognized currently in earnings in other income, net to offset the
remeasurement of the related assets and liabilities.

The Company hedges its investment in its Japanese subsidiary with
foreign currency contracts that are effective as a hedge against
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Gains or losses from changes
in the fair value of these foreign currency contracts, which are offset
in whole or in part by translation gains and losses on the Japanese net
assets hedged, are recorded as translation adjustments in accumulated
other comprehensive income. The Company recorded a net loss of $14
and a net gain of $892 in accumulated translation adjustment on
foreign currency contracts hedging foreign net investments for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, the Company excludes changes in
fair value relating to time value of foreign currency contracts from its
assessment of hedge effectiveness. The Company recorded income
relating to time value in other income, net of $1,020 and $2,454 and
recorded expense in interest expense of $551 and $194 for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

6. INCOME TAXES
Domestic and foreign pre-tax income (loss) is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Domestic $   (18,985) $     (8,170) $     (7,626)
Foreign 368 47,041 78,122_________ _________ _________

Total $   (18,617) $     38,871 $     70,496_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

The provision (benefit) for income taxes is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Current:
Federal $    (1,695) $     16,428 $       4,504
State (401) 500 776
Foreign 1,666 3,509 9,751_________ _________ _________
Total current (430) 20,437 15,031_________ _________ _________

Deferred:
Federal and state (1,828) (7,172) 732
Foreign (2,045) (5,498) (254)_________ _________ _________
Total deferred (3,873) (12,670) 478_________ _________ _________
Total $     (4,303) $       7,767 $     15,509_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
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The effective tax rate differs from the federal tax rate as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Federal tax $     (6,516) $     13,604 $     24,675
State tax, net of federal benefit (2,398) 325 498
Impact of international operations 1,256 (9,151) (12,971)
Non-deductible acquisition costs – 872 523
Write-off of in-process research 
and development 2,219 – 1,650

Tax credits (excluding foreign 
tax credits) (1,879) – (1,366)

Amortization of deferred tax 
charge on intercompany sale 6,783 – –

Other, net (3,768) 2,117 2,500_________ _________ _________
Provision for (benefit from) 
income taxes $    (4,303) $       7,767 $     15,509_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

The significant components of the deferred income tax provision
(benefit) are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Net changes in deferred tax assets 
and liabilities $     25,711 $     (7,007) $     (9,530)

Deferred tax assets reducing 
(increasing) goodwill (7,361) – 1,935

Increase (decrease) in beginning-
of-year balance of the valuation 
allowance for deferred tax assets (22,223) (5,663) 8,073_________ _________ _________
Total $     (3,873) $ (12,670) $          478_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards which
gave rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities
were as follows:

As of December 31, 2002 2001

Deferred tax assets:
Depreciation of property and equipment $       (418) $            23
Reserves and allowances 2,743 2,313
Accrued expenses not currently deductible 6,415 9,271
Net operating loss carryforwards 9,463 11,215
Tax credit carryforwards 27,488 41,107
Purchased technology and other intangibles 8,977 16,973
Other, net 5,996 5,473_________ _________

Total gross deferred tax assets 60,664 86,375
Less valuation allowance (27,820) (50,043)_________ _________
Net deferred tax asset $     32,844 $     36,332_________ __________________ _________

Long-term deferred tax asset of $16,017 and $21,214 as of December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, is included in other assets, net.

The Company has established a valuation allowance for certain deferred
tax assets, including those for a portion of net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. Such a valuation allowance is recorded when it is
more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. The portion of the valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets for which subsequently recognized tax benefits will be applied
directly to contributed capital was $5,135 as of December 31, 2002.

This amount was fully reserved due to the uncertainty of United States
entities generating sufficient taxable income to realize certain domes-
tic deferred tax assets which are attributable to differences between
financial and tax reporting of employee stock option transactions. 
The valuation allowance related to federal income tax was based on
Internal Revenue Code Sections 382 and 383 which limit realization
of certain assets. In addition, the United States entities do not
currently generate sufficient taxable income to absorb research and
development and stewardship expenses properly allocated to United
States revenue, unless sufficient income is repatriated from foreign
subsidiaries. The valuation allowance related to state deferred tax
assets was attributable to certain state income taxes not expected to be
realized even if foreign earnings are repatriated due to differences in
calculating federal and state taxable income. The valuation allowance
related to certain foreign deferred tax assets was based on historical
losses and infringement litigation in certain jurisdictions.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company, for federal income tax
purposes, has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$3,659, foreign tax credits of $5,659, alternative minimum tax credit
of $399 and research and experimentation credit carryforwards of
$17,353. As of December 31, 2002, the Company, for state income tax
purposes, has net operating loss carryforwards totaling $19,596 from
multiple jurisdictions and research and experimentation credits of
$4,078. As of December 31, 2002, the Company also had net operat-
ing losses in multiple foreign jurisdictions of $23,418. If not used by
the Company to reduce income taxes payable in future periods, net
operating loss carryforwards will expire between 2003 and 2022, the
foreign tax credits will expire between 2005 and 2007 and research
and experimentation credit carryforwards between 2003 and 2022.

The Company provides for United States income taxes on the earnings
of foreign subsidiaries unless they are considered permanently invested
outside of the United States. At December 31, 2002, the cumulative
amount of earnings upon which United States income taxes have not
been provided are approximately $191,958. Upon repatriation, some
of these earnings would generate foreign tax credits which may reduce
the federal tax liability associated with any future foreign dividend.

The Company has settled its federal income tax obligations through 1991.
The Company believes the provisions for income taxes are adequate.

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
A summary of property, plant and equipment, net follows:

As of December 31, 2002 2001

Computer equipment and furniture $   139,837 $   130,527
Buildings and building equipment 50,687 50,156
Land and improvements 14,355 14,050
Leasehold improvements 23,444 19,333_________ _________

228,323 214,066
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (138,064) (131,819)_________ _________

Property, plant and equipment, net $     90,259 $     82,247_________ __________________ _________
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8. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
On January 10, 2001, the Company entered into a syndicated, senior,
unsecured credit facility that allows the Company to borrow up to
$100,000. This facility is a three-year revolving credit facility, which
terminates on January 10, 2004. Under this facility, the Company has
the option to pay interest based on LIBOR plus a spread of between
0.50% and 1.75% or prime plus a spread of between 0% and 0.50%,
based on a pricing grid tied to a financial covenant. As a result, the
Company’s interest expense associated with borrowings under this
credit facility will vary with market interest rates. In addition, commit-
ment fees are payable on the unused portion of the credit facility at
rates between 0.20% and 0.425% based on a pricing grid tied to a
financial covenant. A utilization fee of 0.125% is payable on amounts
borrowed under the credit facility when borrowings exceed 33% of the
total facility amount. The weighted average interest rate for 2002 was
3.71%. The facility contains certain financial and other covenants,
including financial covenants requiring the maintenance of specified
liquidity ratios, leverage ratios and minimum tangible net worth. The
Company had short-term borrowings against the credit facility of
$10,000 at December 31, 2002.

Other short-term borrowings include borrowings on multi-currency
lines of credit, capital leases and other borrowings. Interest rates are
generally based on the applicable country’s prime lending rate,
depending on the currency borrowed. Other short-term borrowings of
$7,670 were outstanding under these agreements at December 31,
2002. No amounts were outstanding at December 31, 2001.

9. LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE
In June 2002, the Company issued $172,500 of 6 7/8% Convertible
Subordinated Notes (“Notes”) due 2007 in a private offering pursuant
to SEC Rule 144A. The Notes have been registered with the SEC
under the Securities Act of 1933. The Company pays interest on the
Notes semi-annually in December and June. The Notes are convertible
into the Company’s common stock at a conversion price of $23.27 per
share, for a total of 7,413 shares. Some or all of the Notes may be
redeemed by the Company for cash on or after June 20, 2005.

Other long-term notes payable include multi-currency notes payable
and capital leases. Interest rates are generally based on the applicable
country’s prime lending rate, depending on the currency borrowed.
Other long-term notes payable of $5,185 were outstanding under these
agreements at December 31, 2002.

The Company had unsecured long-term notes payable of $5,100 to the
former shareholders of Harness Software Group at December 31,
2001. The notes were repaid in 2002, in advance of their due date.

10. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
A summary of other long-term liabilities follows:

As of December 31, 2002 2001

Lease termination fees and other 
facilities related costs $     17,550 $       8,906

Employment related accruals 1,046 76
Other 679 384_________ _________

Total other long-term liabilities $     19,275 $       9,366_________ __________________ _________

11. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE
The following provides the computation of basic and diluted net
income (loss) per share:

Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss) $   (14,314) $     31,104 $     54,987_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Weighted average shares used to 
calculate basic net income (loss) 
per share 65,766 64,436 64,125

Employee stock options and 
employee stock purchase plan – 3,111 3,261

Warrants – 134 123_________ _________ _________
Weighted average common and 
potential common shares used to 
calculate diluted net income (loss) 
per share 65,766 67,681 67,509_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Basic net income (loss) per share $         (.22) $           .48 $           .86_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Diluted net income (loss) per share $         (.22) $           .46 $           .81_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

Options and warrants to purchase 10,821, 670 and 123 shares of
common stock were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The options and warrants were excluded because
the options were anti-dilutive either because the Company incurred a
net loss or because the exercise price was greater than the average
market price of the common shares for the respective periods. The
effect of the conversion of the Company’s convertible subordinated
notes for the year ended December 31, 2002 was anti-dilutive. If the
assumed conversion of convertible subordinated notes had been
dilutive, the Company’s net income (loss) per share would have
included additional earnings of $5,719 and additional incremental
shares of 4,320 for the year ended December 31, 2002.

12. INCENTIVE STOCK
The Board of Directors has the authority to issue incentive stock in
one or more series and to determine the relative rights and preferences
of the incentive stock. On February 10, 1999, the Company adopted a
Shareholder Rights Plan and declared a dividend distribution of one
Right for each outstanding share of Common Stock, payable to holders
of record on March 5, 1999. Under certain conditions, each Right may
be exercised to purchase 1/100 of a share of Series A Junior Participat-
ing Incentive Stock at a purchase price of $95, subject to adjustment.
The Rights are not presently exercisable and will only become exercis-
able if a person or group acquires or commences a tender offer to
acquire 15% of the Common Stock. If a person or group acquires 15%
of the Common Stock, each Right will be adjusted to entitle its holder
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to receive, upon exercise, Common Stock (or, in certain circumstances,
other assets of the Company) having a value equal to two times the
exercise price of the Right or each Right will be adjusted to entitle its
holder to receive, upon exercise, common stock of the acquiring com-
pany having a value equal to two times the exercise price of the Right,
depending on the circumstances. The Rights expire on February 10,
2009 and may be redeemed by the Company for $0.01 per Right. The
Rights do not have voting or dividend rights, and until they become
exercisable, have no dilutive effect on the earnings of the Company.

13. EMPLOYEE STOCK AND SAVINGS PLANS
The Company has three common stock option plans which provide 
for the granting of incentive and nonqualified stock options to key
employees, officers and non-employee directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The three stock option plans are administered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors and permit
accelerated vesting of outstanding options upon the occurrence of
certain changes in control of the Company.

The Company also has a stock plan that provides for the sale of
common stock to key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Shares can be awarded under the plan at no purchase price as a stock
bonus and the stock plan also provides for the granting of nonqualified
stock options.

The Company has assumed stock options of 1,078 and 1,088 granted
to the former employees of IKOS and Innoveda, respectively. The
options assumed were outside the Company’s plans but are adminis-
tered as if issued under the plans. Assumed options have been adjusted
to give effect to the conversion under the terms of the respective
merger agreements. No additional stock options will be granted under
the IKOS and Innoveda option plans.

In May 1989, the shareholders adopted the 1989 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (US ESPP) and reserved 1,400 shares for issuance. The
shareholders have subsequently amended the US ESPP to reserve an
additional 9,000 shares for issuance. In June 2002, the Board of
Directors adopted the Foreign Subsidiary Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, with substantially identical terms and reserved 150 shares for
issuance to foreign employees. Under the US ESPP prior to 2001,
each eligible employee could purchase up to eight hundred shares of
stock per quarter at prices no less than 85% of its fair market value
determined at certain specified dates. The shareholders amended the
US ESPP effective for 2001 to provide for overlapping two-year
offerings starting every six months on January 1 and July 1 of each
year with purchases every six months during those offerings. Each
eligible employee may purchase up to sixteen hundred shares of stock
on each purchase date at prices no less than 85% of the lesser of the
fair market value of the shares at the beginning of the two-year
offering period or on the applicable purchase date. In September 2002,
the Board of Directors authorized a special purchase date on
September 30, 2002, and a special 27-month offering commencing on
October 1, 2002 with purchases on January 1, 2003 and every six
months thereafter. Employees purchased 1,046 and 338 shares under
the ESPPs in 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2002,
2,679 shares remain available for future purchase under the ESPPs.

The plans will expire upon either issuance of all shares reserved for
issuance or at the discretion of the Board of Directors. There are no
plans to terminate the ESPPs at this time.

SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” defines
a fair value based method of accounting for employee stock options
and similar equity instruments. As is permitted under SFAS No. 123,
the Company elected to continue to account for its stock-based com-
pensation plans under APB Opinion No. 25. Other than with respect to
options assumed through acquisitions, no stock-based employee com-
pensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted under
the Company’s plans have an exercise price equal to the market value
of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The Company
recorded compensation expense of $1,049 in 2002 for amortization of
deferred compensation related to unvested stock options assumed
through acquisitions. The Company has computed, for pro forma dis-
closure purposes, the value of all stock-based awards granted during
2002, 2001, and 2000 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model as
prescribed by SFAS No. 123 using the following assumptions:

Stock Option Plans
Year ended December 31 2002 2001 2000

Risk-free interest rate 3.8% 4.6% 5.7%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected life (in years) 4.1 4.1 4.0
Expected volatility 86% 78% 60%

Employee Stock Purchase Plans
Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Risk-free interest rate 1.7% 3.4% 6.0%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected life (in years) 0.375 0.50 0.25
Expected volatility 86% 78% 60%

Using the Black-Scholes methodology, the total fair value of options
granted during 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $26,379, $39,557 and
$40,862, respectively, which would be amortized on a pro forma basis
over the vesting period of the options. The total fair value of purchase
rights under the ESPPs during 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $1,767, $1,695
and $821, respectively, which would be amortized on pro forma basis
over the purchase period, either three or six months. The weighted
average fair value of options granted during 2002, 2001 and 2000 was
$5.94, $11.99 and $8.99 per share, respectively. The weighted average
fair value of purchase rights under the ESPPs during 2002, 2001 and
2000 was $1.21, $3.31 and $1.93 per share, respectively. See Note 2,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, for disclosure of the
Company’s pro forma net income (loss) and net income (loss) per
share information.
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The following table summarizes information about options
outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2002:

–––––––––– Outstanding ––––––––– –––– Exercisable ––––
Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Number of Contractual Average Number of Average
Exercise Prices Shares Life (Years) Price Shares Price

$ 0.04 – 4.44 445 7.19 $    2.81 175 $    2.34
$ 4.61 – 5.66 3,072 9.68 $    5.62 41 $    5.28
$ 5.67 – 8.06 2,152 6.11 $    7.71 1,535 $    7.80
$ 8.09 – 10.06 2,237 5.08 $    9.48 2,087 $    9.54
$ 10.13 – 13.45 2,069 5.15 $  12.33 1,465 $  12.19
$ 13.50 – 17.27 1,231 7.99 $  16.23 420 $  15.89
$ 17.32 – 17.81 2,822 7.75 $  17.81 1,506 $  17.81
$ 17.87 – 18.84 2,612 8.77 $  18.81 772 $  18.80
$ 18.92 – 63.58 1,605 8.45 $  22.77 502 $  23.42
$ 65.56 – 65.56 4 5.37 $  65.56 4 $  65.56______ ______
$ 0.04 – 65.56 18,249 7.47 $  13.05 8,507 $  12.98______ ____________ ______

Options under all four plans generally expire ten years from the date
of grant and become exercisable over four years from the date of grant
or from the commencement of employment at prices generally not less
than the fair market value at the date of grant. The excess of the fair
market value of the shares at the date of grant over the option price, if
any, is charged to earnings ratably over the vesting period. At
December 31, 2002, 4,788 shares were available for future grant.

Stock options outstanding, the weighted average exercise price and
transactions involving the stock option plans are summarized as follows:

Shares Price

Balance at December 31, 1999 12,545 $       9.25
Granted 4,659 17.36
Exercised (2,726) 8.44
Canceled (2,002) 10.56_______ ________

Balance at December 31, 2000 12,476 $     12.25_______ ________
Granted 3,160 20.20
Exercised (1,338) 9.33
Canceled (427) 17.60_______ ________

Balance at December 31, 2001 13,871 $     14.18_______ ________
Granted 4,969 10.20
Assumed through acquisition 2,166 6.14
Exercised (877) 9.07
Canceled (1,880) 16.56_______ ________

Balance at December 31, 2002 18,249 $     13.05_______ _______________ ________

The Company has an employee savings plan (the Savings Plan) that
qualifies as a deferred salary arrangement under Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code. Under the Savings Plan, participating United
States employees may defer a portion of their pretax earnings, up to
the Internal Revenue Service annual contribution limit. The Company
currently matches 50% of eligible employee’s contributions, up to a
maximum of 6% of the employee’s earnings. Employer matching
contributions vest over five years, 20% for each year of service
completed. The Company’s matching contributions to the Savings Plan
were $4,252, $3,619 and $3,562, in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

14. STOCK REPURCHASES
The Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase shares
in the open market. The Company purchased 1,621 and 2,979 shares
of common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $39,658 and
$52,488 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. There were no repurchases in 2002. The Company considers
market conditions, alternative uses of cash and balance sheet ratios
when evaluating share repurchases.

15. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS
On February 22, 2002, as part of the purchase price for the acquisition
of ATI, the Company issued warrants to purchase 50 shares of the
Company’s common stock for $20.77 per share, exercisable from
February 15, 2006 until February 14, 2012.

On October 31, 1999, as part of the purchase price for the acquisition
of substantially all of the assets of VeriBest, Inc., the Company issued
a warrant to Integraph, the selling company, to purchase 500 shares of
the Company’s common stock for $15 per share exercisable from
October 31, 2001 until October 31, 2002. In November 2001, Integraph
gave up all future rights to exercise the warrant in exchange for cash
consideration of $2,000, at which time the warrant was cancelled.

16. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The following table summarizes the components of accumulated other
comprehensive income:

As of December 31, 2002 2001

Foreign currency translation adjustment $     17,606 $     10,736
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives (171) 3,227
Minimum pension liability (816) –
Unrealized gain on investments – 2,285_________ _________

Accumulated other comprehensive income $     16,619 $     16,248_________ __________________ _________

17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases
The Company leases a majority of its field office facilities under non-
cancelable operating leases. In addition, the Company leases certain
equipment used in its research and development activities. This
equipment is generally leased on a month-to-month basis after
meeting a six-month lease minimum.

Future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable operating
leases are approximately as follows:

Annual periods ending December 31,

2003 $     28,581
2004 23,266
2005 19,982
2006 16,015
2007 13,192
Thereafter 40,876_________
Total $   141,912__________________

Rent expense under operating leases was $27,353, $20,903 and $21,879
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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The Company entered into agreements to sublease portions of its
facility sites. Under terms of these agreements, approximately three
hundred square feet of space was rented to third parties and is
expected to result in rental receipts of $3,749 in 2003.

Indemnifications
The Company’s license and services agreements include a limited
indemnification provision for claims from third-parties relating to the
Company’s intellectual property. Such indemnification provisions are
accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies”. The indemnification is limited to the amount paid by
the customer. At December 31, 2002, the Company is not aware of any
material liabilities arising from these indemnifications.

Legal Proceedings
In October 1997, Quickturn, a competitor, filed an action against the
Company’s German subsidiary in a German District Court alleging
infringement by the Company’s SimExpress emulation product of a
European patent 0437491 (EP’491). The Company was unable to chal-
lenge the validity of EP’491 under an assignor estoppel theory and the
German court ruled in April 1999 that the German subsidiary’s sales
of SimExpress violated EP’491 and awarded unspecified damages. In
February 2001, in unrelated litigation, the Federal Patent Court in
Germany ruled that EP’491 is null and void in Germany. The German
District Court, in response to the nullification of the Quickturn patent,
suspended its April 1999 judgment of infringement against
SimExpress. The Company has appealed the court’s application of
assignor estoppel. Quickturn has appealed the invalidation of EP’491.
The German Supreme Court is expected to hear both appeals.

In October 1998, Quickturn filed an action against Meta and the
Company in France alleging infringement by SimExpress and Celaro,
the Company’s second generation emulation product, of EP’491. There
have been no rulings by the French court regarding the merits of this
case to date. In 2001, the Company filed suit against Cadence and
Quickturn (Quickturn became a Cadence subsidiary in 1999.) in
France claiming misappropriation of patent rights. This case alleges
that Quickturn misappropriated Meta trade secrets during Quickturn’s
evaluation of Meta’s technology in connection with a possible acquisi-
tion of Meta in 1994 and 1995 and filed one or more patent applica-
tions claiming rights to inventions Quickturn learned from Meta.

The Company had two consolidated lawsuits pending against Quick-
turn and Cadence in United States District Court for the Northern
District of California alleging that Quickturn’s Mercury or Mercury-
Plus products infringe six Company-owned patents and alleging a mis-
appropriation of trade secrets. In February 2003, the jury in this case
returned a verdict in favor of Quickturn and Cadence on all counts.

A subsidiary of the Company, IKOS Systems, Inc., currently has
pending against Quickturn and Cadence a patent infringement lawsuit
against the parties’ Palladium product. Quickturn and Cadence cur-
rently have pending against the Company a patent infringement
lawsuit against the Company’s Vstation product. There has been no
substantive activity in either lawsuit.

In addition to the above litigation, from time to time the Company is
involved in various disputes and litigation matters that arise from the
ordinary course of business. These include disputes and lawsuits
relating to intellectual property rights, licensing, contracts and
employee relation matters.

18. OTHER INCOME, NET
Other income, net is comprised of the following:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Interest income $       6,653 $     11,954 $     10,421
Minority interest in earnings (703) (408) (1,383)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (199) 689 450
Gain on sale of property, plant 
and equipment – – 3,118

Other, net 1,154 (1,303) (3,296)_________ _________ _________
Other income, net $       6,905 $     10,932 $       9,310_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

19. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
The following provides additional information concerning supplemental
disclosures of cash flow activities:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Cash paid for:
Interest $       7,558 $       1,420 $       2,103
Income taxes $       3,077 $       9,867 $       5,955

Debt issued for purchase of 
a business $              – $              – $       6,100

Equipment acquired with 
capital leases $          774 $              – $              –

Issuance of stock warrant 
and stock options for purchase 
of businesses $     14,479 $              – $              –

20. SEGMENT REPORTING
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information”, requires disclosures of certain information
regarding operating segments, products and services, geographic areas
of operation and major customers. To determine what information to
report under SFAS No. 131, the Company reviewed the Chief Opera-
ting Decision Makers’ (CODM) method of analyzing the operating
segments to determine resource allocations and performance assess-
ments. The Company’s CODMs are the Chief Executive Officer and
the President.

The Company operates exclusively in the EDA industry. The Company
markets its products primarily to customers in the communications,
computer, semiconductor, consumer electronics, aerospace, and
transportation industries. The Company sells and licenses its products
through its direct sales force in North America, Europe, Japan and
Pacific Rim, and through distributors where third parties can extend
sales reach more effectively or efficiently. The Company’s reportable
segments are based on geographic area.
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All intercompany revenues and expenses are eliminated in computing
revenues and operating income. The corporate component of operating
income represents research and development, corporate marketing and
selling, corporate general and administration, special charges and
merger and acquisition related charges. Corporate capital expenditures
and depreciation and amortization are generated from assets allotted to
research and development, corporate marketing and selling and
corporate general and administration. Reportable segment information
is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Revenues:
Americas $   305,542 $   293,828 $   281,084
Europe 157,679 174,025 176,510
Japan 81,757 97,947 98,707
Pacific Rim 51,201 34,571 33,534_________ _________ _________

Total $   596,179 $   600,371 $   589,835_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Operating Income (Loss):

Americas $   165,038 $   166,164 $   151,104
Europe 85,365 96,604 92,735
Japan 47,215 55,788 55,425
Pacific Rim 35,137 22,873 23,448
Corporate (346,581) (310,986) (259,123)_________ _________ _________

Total $  (13,826) $     30,443 $     63,589_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Depreciation and Amortization:

Americas $       1,442 $       1,679 $       4,055
Europe 5,297 4,823 5,042
Japan 1,008 681 749
Pacific Rim 699 548 476
Corporate 12,980 9,993 9,125_________ _________ _________

Total $     21,426 $     17,724 $     19,447_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Capital Expenditures:

Americas $       1,434 $       1,734 $       3,545
Europe 4,668 4,045 6,813
Japan 459 2,191 522
Pacific Rim 2,269 629 481
Corporate 11,579 10,091 7,658_________ _________ _________

Total $     20,409 $     18,690 $     19,019_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________
Identifiable Assets:

Americas $   548,927 $   350,755 $   313,830
Europe 191,276 99,964 113,145
Japan 43,165 50,480 74,093
Pacific Rim 21,480 20,022 29,846_________ _________ _________

Total $   804,848 $   521,221 $   530,914_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

The Company segregates revenue into three categories of similar
products and services. These categories include Integrated Circuit (IC)
Design, Systems Design and Professional Services. The IC Design and
Systems Design categories include both product and support revenues.
Revenue information is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Revenues:
Integrated Circuit (IC) Design $   416,318 $   409,466 $   385,295
Systems Design 154,498 150,599 150,055
Professional Services 25,363 40,306 54,485_________ _________ _________

Total $   596,179 $   600,371 $   589,835_________ _________ __________________ _________ _________

21. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION – UNAUDITED
A summary of quarterly financial information follows:

Quarter ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2002
Total revenues $ 128,004 $ 135,409 $ 152,650 $ 180,116
Gross margin $ 103,133 $ 101,683 $ 123,706 $ 150,473
Operating income (loss) $ (1,514) $ (32,567) $     4,471 $   15,784
Net income (loss) $     1,758 $ (36,591) $     1,859 $   18,660
Net income (loss) 
per share, basic $       0.03 $    (0.56) $       0.03 $       0.28

Net income (loss) 
per share, diluted $       0.03 $    (0.56) $       0.03 $       0.28

2001
Total revenues $ 154,502 $ 149,492 $ 131,042 $ 165,335
Gross margin $ 122,671 $ 120,707 $ 102,170 $ 140,150
Operating income (loss) $   17,024 $   14,638 $     6,682 $   (7,901)
Net income (loss) $   16,400 $   13,502 $     6,032 $  (4,830)
Net income (loss) 
per share, basic $       0.25 $       0.21 $       0.09 $    (0.07)

Net income (loss) 
per share, diluted $       0.24 $       0.20 $       0.09 $    (0.07)

48

ITEM 8. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mentor Graphics



REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
Management of Mentor Graphics Corporation is responsible for
preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements and for
assuring their integrity and objectivity. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
necessarily include some amounts that are based on informed
judgements and best estimates and assumptions of management. The
consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP,
independent auditors, whose report is included below.

Management of the Company has established and maintains a 
system of internal accounting controls that is designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are
properly recorded and executed in accordance with management’s
authorization and the books and records accurately reflect the
disposition of assets. The system of internal controls includes
appropriate division of responsibility.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised of four
directors who are not officers or employees of Mentor Graphics
Corporation or its subsidiaries. These directors meet with management
and the independent auditors in connection with their review of
matters relating to the Company’s annual financial statements, the
Company’s system of internal accounting controls, and the services of
the independent auditors. The Committee meets with the independent
auditors, without management present, to discuss appropriate matters.
The Committee reports its findings to the Board of Directors and also
recommends the selection and engagement of independent auditors.

Walden C. Rhines
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Gregory K. Hinckley
President

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Mentor Graphics Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Mentor Graphics Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2002. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Mentor
Graphics Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

KPMG LLP
Portland, Oregon
January 23, 2003

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with
Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers 
of Registrant

The information required by this item concerning the Company’s Direc-
tors will be included under “Election of Directors” in the Company’s
2003 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. The
information concerning the Company’s Executive Officers is included
herein on pages 15-16 under the caption “Executive Officers of the
Registrant.” The information required by Item 405 of Regulation S-K
will be included under “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Report-
ing Compliance” in the Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be included under “Com-
pensation of Directors” and “Information Regarding Executive Officer
Compensation” in the Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management

The information required by this item will be included under “Election
of Directors”, “Information Regarding Beneficial Ownership of
Principal Shareholders and Management” and “Equity Compensation
Plan Information” in the Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and 
Related Transactions

The information required by this item is not applicable to the Company.

Item 14. Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the
Company’s Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to
the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the
disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any
controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated,
can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control
objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible
controls and procedures.

Within 90 days prior to the date of this report, the Company carried
out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of
the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures. Based on the foregoing, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

There have been no significant changes in the Company’s internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect the internal
controls subsequent to the date the Company completed its evaluation.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, 
and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) 1 Financial Statements:
The following consolidated financial statements are included in Item 8:

Page

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years 
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 31

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 32

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years 
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 33

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the 
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 34

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 35

Independent Auditors’ Report 49

(a) 2 Financial Statement Schedule:

The schedule and report listed below are filed as part of this report on
the pages indicated:

Page

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 54

Independent Auditors’ Report on Schedule 54

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted since they
are not required, not applicable or the information is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes.

(a) 3 Exhibits
3. A. 1987 Restated Articles of Incorporation. Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4A to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 33-23024).

B. Articles of Amendment of 1987 Restated Articles of Incorpor-
ation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.B to the Com-
pany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998 (1998 10-K).

C. Bylaws of the Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.C to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 (2000 10-K).

4. A. Rights Agreement, dated as of February 10, 1999, between the
Company and American Stock, Transfer & Trust Co. Incorpor-
ated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 1999.

B. Indenture dated June 3, 2002 between the Company and
Wilmington Trust Company. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.B to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2002.

C. Resale Registration Rights Agreement dated June 3, 2002. In-
corporated by reference to Exhibit 4.C to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2002.

10.*A. 1982 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.A to the Company’s 2000 10-K.

*B. Nonqualified Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.C to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1989.

*C. 1986 Stock Plan.

*D. 1987 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan. Incorpor-
ated by reference to Exhibit 10.D to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000.

*E. Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into between the Com-
pany and each of its executive officers and directors. Incorpor-
ated by reference to Exhibit 10.E to the Company’s 1998 10-K.

*F. Form of Severance Agreement entered into between the
Company and each of its executive officers. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.F to the Company’s 1998 10-K.

G. Lease dated November 20, 1991, for 999 Ridder Park Drive
and 1051 Ridder Park Drive, San Jose, California. Incorporat-
ed by reference to Exhibit 10.M to the Company’s Form SE
dated March 25, 1992.

H. Credit Agreement between the Company and Bank of America
National Trust Savings Association dated January 10, 2001.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.H to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001.

I. First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of January 24,
2002 between the Company, Bank of America, N.A. as agent
and the other lenders. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.A to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2002.

J. Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of April 16,
2002 between the Company, Bank of America, N.A. as agent
and the other lenders. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.A to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2002.

K. Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of December
30, 2002 between the Company, Bank of America, N.A. as
agent and the other lenders.

*L. Foreign Subsidiary Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporat-
ed by reference to Exhibit 10.A to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002.

21. List of Subsidiaries of the Company.

23. Consent of Accountants.
*Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

(b) Reports on Form 8-K
On November 14, 2002, the Company filed a current report on Form
8-K to report under Item 9 that on November 14, 2002, the Company
had filed its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended September 30, 2002. The filing included certifications of the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to accompany the
Form 10-Q pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as created by Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on March 24, 2003.

MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION

By /s/WALDEN C. RHINES

Walden C. Rhines
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant on March 24, 2003, in the capacities indicated.

1) Principal Executive Officer:

/s/WALDEN C. RHINES

Walden C. Rhines Chief Executive Officer

(2) Principal Financial Officer:

/s/GREGORY K. HINCKLEY

Gregory K. Hinckley President

(3) Principal Accounting Officer:

/s/ANTHONY B. ADRIAN

Anthony B. Adrian Vice President, Corporate Controller

(4) Directors:

/s/WALDEN C. RHINES

Walden C. Rhines Chairman of the Board

/s/GREGORY K. HINCKLEY

Gregory K. Hinckley Director

/s/SIR PETER BONFIELD

Sir Peter Bonfield Director

/s/MARSHA B. CONGDON

Marsha B. Congdon Director

/s/JAMES R. FIEBIGER

James R. Fiebiger Director

/s/KEVIN C. MCDONOUGH

Kevin C. McDonough Director

/s/FONTAINE K. RICHARDSON

Fontaine K. Richardson Director
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Walden C. Rhines, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Mentor
Graphics Corporation, the registrant;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, par-
ticularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls
and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of
this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effective-
ness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation
as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this
annual report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal con-
trols subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Dated: March 24, 2003

Walden C. Rhines
Chief Executive Officer

I, Gregory K. Hinckley, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Mentor
Graphics Corporation, the registrant;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, par-
ticularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls
and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of
this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effective-
ness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation
as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this
annual report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal con-
trols subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Dated: March 24, 2003

Gregory K. Hinckley
Chief Financial Officer
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MENTOR GRAPHICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

In Thousands Beginning Acquisitions Ending
Description Balance Additions of Business Deductions Balance

Year ended December 31, 2000
Allowance for doubtful accounts $    2,804 $    1,405 $          – $       825 $    3,384
Accrued restructuring costs $    7,740 $    1,027 $          – $    7,720 $    1,047

Year ended December 31, 2001
Allowance for doubtful accounts1 $    3,384 $    1,030 $          – $    1,141 $    3,273
Accrued restructuring costs $    1,047 $  13,050 $          – $    1,476 $  12,621

Year ended December 31, 2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts1 $    3,273 $       725 $   1,056 $    1,202 $    3,852
Accrued restructuring costs $  12,621 $    6,699 $          – $    8,250 $  11,070

1Deductions primarily represent accounts written off during the period
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SCHEDULE

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Mentor Graphics Corporation:

Under date of January 23, 2003, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of Mentor Graphics Corporation and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2002, which are included in the December 31, 2002 annual report on Form 10-K. In connection with our audits
of the aforementioned consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the related consolidated financial statement schedule as listed in the
accompanying index. This financial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on this financial statement schedule based on our audits.

In our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

KPMG LLP
Portland, Oregon
January 23, 2003
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